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COCHAIR MATHEWS: 
We will open the hearing today with Senate Bill (S.B.) 415. As time is limited, 
testimony will be limited to three minutes. 
 
SENATE BILL 415: Establishes for the next biennium the maximum amount to 

be paid to the Public Employees' Benefits Program for group insurance for 
certain active and retired public officers and employees. (BDR S-1191) 

 
LESLIE A. JOHNSTONE (Executive Officer, Board of the Public Employee's Benefits 

Program): 
Senate Bill 415 is the mechanism by which the Legislature establishes the 
assessment to be charged to operating budgets for both the active employee 
and retiree subsidy for health insurance. The amendment (Exhibit C), dated 
May 5, reflects the updated assessment figures based upon the budget closings 
for the Public Employees' Benefits Program (PEBP). It also reflects the 
incorporation of the PEBP Board proposal that was part of the Committee 
closing to modify the eligibility for future retirees, whereby anyone who retires 
after June 30, 2010, would not be eligible for a State subsidy until they have 
attained 15 years of service. No modifications to the formula for the subsidy are 
recommended for those with 15 or more years of service. 
 
SENATOR COFFIN: 
We sometimes hear the term "unfunded liability" in connection with both 
retirement and insurance benefits programs. Do the PEBP health insurance plans 
have unfunded liabilities? 
 
MS. JOHNSTONE: 
We have an unfunded liability to the degree that the policies of the Legislature 
are assumed not to change for future years. Health insurance is very different 
from a pension benefit; there is more latitude to make changes in the plan 
design, the subsidy or the eligibility. We put together the liability with the 
assumptions that the current subsidy and benefit structure will remain in place, 
but it is much more fluid than a pension plan. 
 
SENATOR COFFIN: 
We do not expect to be out of business in 50 years, so the term unfunded 
liability as it is applied to pensions does not apply to health insurance. 
 
SENATOR RAGGIO: 
Can you clarify the limitation on new hires? 
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MS. JOHNSTONE: 
Proposed language for an amendment that would change the eligibility for that 
subsidy has been submitted to the Committee. 
 
MARTIN BIBB (Executive Director, Retired Public Employees of Nevada): 
We are opposed to one portion of this bill. The language used in Section 1, 
Subsection 1(a) in S.B. 415, for example, states the amount of the subsidy is 
"not more than $549.00 per month" rather than simply a dollar amount. We 
think this could lead to the unintended consequence of short-funding this 
budget. The overwhelming majority of the members of the Senate Committee 
on Finance and the Assembly Committee on Ways and Means indicated they 
wanted to restore a great deal of the funding that had been cut in the 
Executive Budget. This bill, as written, would allow the Administration the 
option of contributing a lesser amount than the amount suggested by the 
Legislature. For that reason, we request an amendment to the language in 
S.B. 415 to remove the words "not more than" where they modify an amount, 
as detailed in the written statement I have submitted (Exhibit D). As far back as 
1993, the subsidy bills approved for each biennia have never included this 
language. 
 
COCHAIR MATHEWS: 
We noticed that.  
 
JAMES T. RICHARDSON (Representative, Nevada Faculty Alliance): 
On behalf of the groups I represent, I want to thank you for the actions you 
took to reject the proposals that would have gutted the retiree PEBP program. I 
want to go on record strongly supporting the recommendation made by 
Mr. Martin Bibb. The language he refers to is not necessary and could 
theoretically result in a zero allocation.  
 
We are concerned about the request to add an amendment to implement a 
proposal from the PEBP Board to move the threshold from 5 to 15 years of 
service required before anyone would receive a subsidy when they retire. The 
Dean of the Law School has stated this change will severely handicap his ability 
to hire and retain mid-career law professors. We believe it will be a problem 
throughout the Nevada System of Higher Education (NSHE). Therefore, we 
propose an amendment to that section (Exhibit E). This proposal would 
implement a 10-year threshold rather than a 15-year threshold. There is 
currently a five-year vesting period for the Public Employee's Retirement 
System (PERS). I understand the change from a 5-year vesting period to a 
15-year vesting period would result in a savings of $100,000 this biennium. 
That is not very much money in the grand scheme of things.  
 
COCHAIR MATHEWS: 
Did you tell the Committee how many years you wanted the threshold to be? 
 
MR. RICHARDSON: 
The amendment I have submitted has moved it back to ten years. It splits the 
difference between 5 years and 15 years. It responds to some of the concerns 
that have been expressed about the benefit package we have. It is odd you 
have to work ten years to get any subsidy in the health care package whereas 
you vest in PERS at five years. I hope you will consider this amendment. 
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COCHAIR MATHEWS: 
Ms. Johnstone, have you had an opportunity to talk to Mr. Richardson? 
 
MS. JOHNSTONE: 
I was aware this was a concern of the Faculty Alliance. It is true this will have a 
relatively minor impact on the current budget. The PEBP Board acknowledged 
that when it made the proposal; it is one of many long-term policy changes that 
the PEBP Board was pursuing. 
 
SENATOR RAGGIO: 
Was the inclusion of the words "not more than" in S.B. 415 purposeful? 
 
MS. JOHNSTONE: 
I cannot speak for the Department of Administration, but it was intended to add 
flexibility for any downturn in the economy. With the language removed, if there 
is any return in the subsidy it would have to be done with a full month's 
premium using the premium holiday we have utilized over the last couple of 
years. It is a little less flexible. 
 
SENATOR RAGGIO: 
Can you expound on the difference between the 15-year and the 10-year 
threshold for vesting? We are trying to accomplish meaningful reform in both 
PERS and PEBP. What was the reason the 15-year threshold was chosen? 
 
MS. JOHNSTONE: 
The 15-year threshold came from a review of other plan designs offered by 
governmental jurisdictions, primarily state jurisdictions. While there is a wide 
variety in the plan design for retirees, it is not uncommon for 15 years to 
20 years of service required before any subsidy provided by the employer for 
retirees. We were trying to align ourselves a bit more with other jurisdictions. 
Another reason we chose 15 years as the threshold is the average retiree on our 
plan has 17 to 18 years of service, thus, we would not be impacting the 
majority of the normal retiree population. The base formula put together in 1993 
established 15 years of service as the 100-percent mark for the subsidy.  
 
SENATOR RAGGIO: 
Does our action on this measure affect only State employees and retirees? 
 
MS. JOHNSTONE: 
Because we do not have many incoming nonState retirees due to the cutoff in 
eligibility based on Senate Bill No. 544 of the 74th Legislative Session, there is 
minimal impact on nonState retirees. 
 
SENATOR RAGGIO: 
Those who are currently in the system will be affected. 
 
MS. JOHNSTONE: 
It would not affect any current retirees. It only affects employees who retire 
after June 30, 2010. 
 
SENATOR RAGGIO: 
Have you had any contact with Mayor James B. Gibson of Henderson about the 
potential for not being self-insured? 
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MS. JOHNSTONE: 
No, I have not. 
 
SENATOR RAGGIO: 
He has obtained quotes from major insurance carriers that indicate a large 
saving could result. Has the PEBP Board studied the possibility of obtaining 
insurance from another carrier? 
 
MS. JOHNSTONE: 
We are approached by different carriers with some frequency. Particularly in the 
last year, they have been carriers that offer Medicare Advantage policies. Our 
understanding at the PEBP, both staff and Board, has been that such a change 
is a policy issue beyond our purview. We look to the Legislature for policy 
decisions. 
 
SENATOR RAGGIO: 
Some of this material has been sent to a few of the Senators, with quotes of 
savings of close to 60 percent. 
 
MS. JOHNSTONE: 
I assume these quotes are referring to Medicare Advantage policies. There are 
savings, but the assumption is that all of the population goes into that plan. 
 
SENATOR RAGGIO: 
Yes, it was a group Medicare Advantage plan. I will give you the information I 
have for you to review. 
 
MR. RICHARDSON: 
One of the reasons many state health plans have a longer vesting period is to 
encourage long service, which is a worthy goal. What I suggest, is that there is 
an unintended consequence when that is your primary goal. It discourages the 
hiring of successful mid-career people in State agencies or in universities and 
community colleges to help build up a program. The best example is the Boyd 
Law School. A number of successful professors from all over the country were 
hired; that institution is now ranked 75th in the country, which is phenomenal. 
The Dean of the Law School is afraid of losing some of those people if the 
15-year rule goes into effect because they will not be in State service long 
enough to qualify. That is one of the major reasons we are here today asking 
you to consider this change. We are not asking for special privileges for the 
University system: we are part of the State health plan. It affects State 
agencies that would like to hire mid-career people. There is a conflict of goals: 
one to encourage long-term service; the other to allow the hiring of successful 
mid-career professionals. 
 
COCHAIR HORSFORD: 
Regarding the Medicare Advantage program other states have adopted, do you 
know how many providers in the Carson City area accept Medicare and 
Medicare Advantage? I have heard there have been challenges in finding a 
provider. 
 
MR. RICHARDSON: 
My understanding is you are correct: it is a challenge to find providers who will 
accept those plans. You also have to be careful about "lowballing." You get a 
very good bid at the beginning that skyrockets after a year or two.  
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COCHAIR HORSFORD: 
I would like to get some of that information on the record. It helps us 
understand what the options are. 
 
MR. BIBB: 
You are correct. We have not been able to find any provider in Carson City who 
would accept a Medicare Advantage plan. It is difficult to get providers to take 
Medicare assignment under Medicare Parts A and B. To our knowledge there is 
great resistance within the medical industry, perhaps because of rates and 
approved reimbursement amounts, to accept Medicare Advantage plans. It is a 
concern to us. We do not want an organization that represents approximately 
36,000 retired public employees supporting a health-insurance plan they will not 
be able to use. The PEBP plan has been approached within the last year or so 
with Medicare Advantage proposals. Some of those have not been received 
enthusiastically because, unlike this plan, there are two levels of recourse. The 
first is through staff and plan managers. The second is through the Legislature. 
Coming to the Legislature is a better opportunity than dealing with an 
anonymous official on the 56th floor of an insurance building in Hartford, 
Connecticut.  
 
COCHAIR HORSFORD: 
I have two questions regarding the ten-year vesting issue. When a mid-career 
professional is recruited into a Nevada institution of higher learning, they come 
at a higher salary level, and they have the ability to pay a higher premium for 
health-care costs. If they receive a full subsidy at ten years of service, is that 
fair? Finally, do you have any statistics about the type of health benefits these 
recruits received in the states they come from compared to what is offered in 
Nevada?  
 
MR. RICHARDSON: 
Those are good points. The PEBP Board did a study comparing state health 
plans. It did not isolate the states that had separate heath plans for the 
University system. I interpreted the PEBP study to mean that Nevada had an 
average health plan in terms of benefits. I am not suggesting that professors 
came to Nevada because they were attracted by the health plan. In fact, I have 
heard anecdotal evidence to the contrary. As to ability to pay, it is true that 
mid-career professionals do have more money to pay higher premiums. 
 
RONALD P. DREHER (Government Affairs Director, Peace Officers Research 

Association): 
The "not more than" language could be zero. We share the concerns of our 
colleagues Mr. Bibb and Mr. Richardson. In 1979 and 1980, the City of Reno 
privatized its health insurance. Each year, the insurer would offer a new policy 
at a reduced rate for the first year. That rate would rise drastically for 
subsequent years and the City of Reno would change insurers. Within a few 
years, the City of Reno's credibility with the insurance industry dropped 
precipitously. Finally, the only way Reno could get insurance was to self-insure. 
Obviously, these insurance carriers would like our business. 
 
We have a better plan in place, and with assistance, it is getting better all the 
time. It is important to understand that insurance companies offer low rates to 
attract the client and that these rates can be raised. Having said that, we urge 
your support of S.B. 415 with the amendments that you have heard today. 
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DANNY N. COYLE (Retiree Vice President, American Federation of State, County 

and Municipal Employees, AFL-CIO): 
I concur with the remarks of Mr. Richardson, Mr. Bibb and Mr. Dreher. We are 
concerned about the reduction in the rates for retirees in fiscal year 
(FY) 2009-2010 and FY 2010-2011. We understood the current subsidy rates 
of $410.48 would be maintained through FY 2010-2011. Ms. Johnstone 
explained this subsidy was reduced due to the uncomingling of the nonState 
retirees with the State retirees, and a ratio that would correct an imbalance. We 
would like to see the amounts restored to the current levels. 
 
COCHAIR MATHEWS: 
Are there any questions from the Committee? Ms. Johnstone, can you respond 
to Mr. Coyle's statement? 
 
MS. JOHNSTONE: 
There are a couple of aspects that went into the calculation of this assessment. 
Senate Bill No. 544 of the 74th Legislative Session established a policy that 
Medicare retiree expenses would not be comingled with the rest of the 
population. That change occurred in the last days of the Session. The 
assessment was not modified in the Session bill, so when we neared the target 
provided by the Department of Administration to hold the State costs the same 
in the upcoming biennium, we added together active and retiree expenses and 
calculated it in the total. The proposals by the PEBP Board modified the real 
subsidy for both populations equally: approximately 5 percent less than its 
current level in order to meet this target. The numbers are a little deceiving: the 
numbers for the current biennium are artificially high for retirees and artificially 
low for active employees. The new plan reflects the policy change, and impacts 
the retirees and the actives in the same proportionate manner. 
 
COCHAIR MATHEWS: 
Are there any further questions from the Committee? 
 
Is there anyone here against this bill? Seeing none, we will close the hearing on 
S.B 415. 
 
We will open the hearing on S.B. 418. 
 
SENATE BILL 418: Temporarily suspends the requirement to transfer money 

from the Abandoned Property Trust Account in the State General Fund to 
the Millennium Scholarship Trust Fund. (BDR S-1302) 

 
GARY L. GHIGGERI (Senate Fiscal Analyst, Fiscal Analysis Division, Legislative 

Counsel Bureau): 
This legislation was introduced by the Senate Committee on Finance in response 
to actions taken by the 24th Special Session of the Legislature. The $7.6 million 
taken from the Millennium Scholarship transfer this fiscal year was utilized by 
the 24th Special Session as a budget-balancing initiative. It is still required to 
balance the budget as recommended by the Governor. 
 
SENATOR HARDY: 
This issue of abandoned property has troubled me since I first came to the 
Legislature. At some point, we have to start looking at the abandoned property 
program as a means of reuniting people with their property as opposed to a 
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revenue source. I have been approached with some ideas and concepts. I would 
like to have a chance to talk to the Treasurer about it. 
 
COCHAIR MATHEWS: 
Do you have an amendment? 
 
SENATOR HARDY: 
I have a conceptual amendment. We could certainly put that forward. I do not 
know if there is another vehicle to which we can tie those reforms. 
 
COCHAIR MATHEWS: 
Would you bring that amendment to the Committee? 
 
SENATOR HARDY: 
Conceptually, the amendment would revise the presumption of the 
abandonment language to make it clear that a written or other recorded 
statement from an apparent owner of the property can be used to establish who 
does, or does not, own the property. It revises Chapter 128.550 of the 
Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS) to add an ongoing business relationship as a 
defense for the abandonment of property. It reduces the period of limitation 
from ten years to seven. It also revises provisions concerning audits with the 
State of Nevada.  
 
COCHAIR MATHEWS: 
We need to read that. We have auditors on Staff. Why would we want to pay 
additional auditors? 
 
SENATOR HARDY: 
Currently, we allow third-party auditors out-of-State. 
 
COCHAIR MATHEWS: 
Are there any questions or comments on this bill? We will get Senator Hardy's 
amendment and hear the bill again in the next day or so. 
 
We will close the hearing on S.B. 418. 
 
COCHAIR HORSFORD: 
We will open the hearing on Assembly Bill (A.B.) 165. 
 
ASSEMBLY BILL 165 (1st Reprint): Revises the provisions governing the Fund to 

Stabilize the Operation of the State Government. (BDR 31-580) 
 
ASSEMBLYWOMAN BARBARA BUCKLEY (Assembly District No. 8): 
We know that ensuring funding for critical services is a duty we owe our 
constituents. Since the 74th Legislative Session, we have had to cut the 
approved budget twice. First, we raided our existing "Rainy Day Fund" to try to 
cover the budget shortfall. Next we tried to eliminate all discretionary spending. 
Then, we made cuts to priority services. We cut spending for: Kindergarten 
through Grade 12 (K-12) textbooks; medical and social services; hospital 
reimbursements and more. This year, we have been presented with an 
Executive Budget that proposes even more severe and widespread cuts to these 
critical services. 
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Creating programs in good times to slash them in bad times is senseless. While 
no one predicted the depth and severity of our current recession, our past 
spending habits do not allow us any margin for error during economic slumps. 
We must be fiscally prudent. One way to cushion our budget from the harshest 
effects of economic cycles is to create a Stabilization Account large enough to 
help maintain a consistent level of priority services during ordinary downturns. 
Our current "Rainy Day Fund" does not do the job. It relies chiefly on voluntary 
legislative appropriation: a portion of the unrestricted balance in the State 
General Fund may be credited to the "Rainy Day Fund," more often than not 
that does not happen. Additionally, current law limits the fund to 15 percent of 
General Fund operating appropriations. Despite the fund, we continue to have 
budget crises because our savings are insufficient for our needs. 
 
Assembly Bill 165 requires forced savings in the amount of 1 percent of 
projected revenue. The Governor's Budget must reserve 1 percent of the total 
anticipated revenue for each fiscal year of a biennium for the Stabilization Fund. 
The Legislature's approved budget must reserve 1 percent of the total 
anticipated revenue for each year of a biennium for the Stabilization Fund using 
the revenue estimate provided by the Economic Forum on May 1 during the 
Legislative Session. Present law states that, after subtracting an amount equal 
to 10 percent of the operating appropriations for all State agencies, institutions 
and departments and funding for schools, 40 percent of the remaining 
unrestricted balance is credited to the Rainy Day Fund. Assembly Bill 165 
provides that after subtracting an amount equal to 7 percent of the operating 
appropriations for all State agencies, institutions and departments and funding 
for schools, 40 percent of the remaining unrestricted balance in the State 
General Fund is credited to the Stabilization Fund. 
 
Present law limits the accumulation of the "Rainy Day Fund" to 15 percent of 
General Fund operating appropriations. Assembly Bill 165 increases the total 
amount that may be accumulated to 20 percent. Money from the Stabilization 
Fund can be appropriated whenever the total actual revenue of the State falls 
5 percent or more below the total anticipated revenue, as determined by the 
Governor and the Legislature or the Interim Finance Committee (IFC). Money 
from the Stabilization Fund may also be appropriated whenever the Governor 
and the Legislature or the IFC agree that a fiscal emergency exists. 
 
The new Stabilization Fund by itself will not save the State from all budgetary 
shortfalls. It starts us on the road to fiscal responsibility and reduces the 
severity of cuts needed when the economy worsens. 
 
SENATOR HARDY: 
The Legislature is like a family who balances its checkbook at the end of the 
month and realizes they have an extra $300 in their account. Instead of going 
out for dinner, they use the money as a down payment on a new minivan. The 
"Rainy Day Funds" are over-taxation funds. We should have been operating 
with the concept of A.B. 165 for many years. This legislation is long overdue. 
We must have the discipline to do this and stick to it. This legislation has my 
wholehearted support. 
 
SENATOR COFFIN: 
I, too, believe this legislation is long overdue. I am concerned we still have not 
addressed the issue of a stable tax source. This legislation assumes we do not 
have an additional stable tax source to help balance the peaks and valleys of the 
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revenue. Do you have any insight as to the best types of taxes to make this 
fund more reliable? 
 
ASSEMBLYWOMAN BUCKLEY: 
This fund will work with our current taxes. It will work should this Legislature 
adopt a more stable tax base. Currently, more than 60 percent of our revenue 
comes from sales and gaming taxes. Other taxes are also volatile when times 
are bad. Regardless of the source of the revenue, we need to have a cushion.  
 
COCHAIR HORSFORD: 
How does the Stabilization Fund address shortfall from local property taxes, 
Local School Support Tax or other taxes the State must supplement if 
inadequate? 
 
ASSEMBLYWOMAN BUCKLEY: 
This bill, A.B. 165, only addresses General Fund appropriations. However, 
A.B. 458 creates an education shortfall fund. It provides mechanisms so that 
when property and sales taxes dip, there will be additional sources of revenue. 
It ensures Redevelopment Agencies do not take money dedicated for schools 
and our Economic Development Agencies are not abating money that the State 
must then make up. Instead of reversions from schools going to the General 
Fund, they would go to an Education Stabilization Fund. 
 
ASSEMBLY BILL 458 (1st Reprint): Revises various provisions relating to 

funding for public education. (BDR 31-685) 
 
COCHAIR HORSFORD: 
These are companion bills. Over 50 percent of the State budget funds 
education. Is there anyone here to testify in favor of A.B. 165? 
 
GEORGE A. ROSS (Director, Legislative and Government Affairs, Shell & Wilmer 

L.L. P.): 
I am here today on behalf of the Las Vegas Chamber of Commerce. We want to 
go on record in support of A.B. 165. 
 
MR. DREHER: 
We support A.B. 165. 
 
COCHAIR HORSFORD: 
Is there anyone else who wants to speak on A.B. 165? If not, we will close the 
hearing on A.B. 165. 
 
We will open the hearing on A.B. 446. 
 
ASSEMBLY BILL 446 (1st Reprint): Revises certain requirements for the 

proposed budget of the Executive Department of the State Government. 
(BDR 31-581) 

 
ASSEMBLYWOMAN BUCKLEY: 
Assembly Bill 446 is the other long-term planning piece measuring progress and 
spending tax dollars wisely. We must decide what the ultimate goals of State 
government should be. The Governor must articulate the core functions of State 
government and craft an Executive Budget to specify which budget accounts 
fund government services and how they will be funded appropriately. This bill 
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assumes the Governor has a long-term view of what government ought to be, 
and how to get there. Nevada did not become one of the lowest ranked states 
in a day and we will not lose that ranking in a day. We must have a long-term 
plan to attain improvement that includes measurable results. 
 
Assembly Bill 446 requires the establishment of benchmarks to evaluate 
progress toward these goals. Each agency must determine its core mission, how 
it relates to the State's priorities and establish measurement indicators that 
gauge progress toward meeting these goals. Agency budgets must report goals, 
full-time equivalent (FTE) positions, agency performance highlights and 
benchmarks for improvement in its budget requests to the Governor and the 
Legislature. Benchmark indicators should include historical data for the current 
fiscal year and the last four fiscal years, if available. Benchmark indicator 
reports should include State rankings, where available, to measure Nevada's 
performance against other states. 
 
Agency report cards on benchmarks will inform budget decisions. The 
Legislature can ask the agency to explain how the benchmarks being reported 
relate to the State's ultimate goals and the agency's primary mission. The 
benchmark results achieved in the current reporting period can be compared 
with previous periods and similar agencies in other states. The Legislature can 
evaluate the processes and procedures that led to benchmark improvements and 
whether effective steps were being taken to remediate lagging benchmarks. The 
Executive Branch and the Legislature can prioritize spending by evaluating each 
agency's activities and how critical they are to achieving the State's ultimate 
goals. Funding can be prioritized based upon the likelihood that funding to a 
particular agency will better foster the achievement of the State's ultimate 
goals. 
 
Agency performance reports not only hold agencies accountable for improving 
performance, they also give them tools to monitor costs and improve efficiency 
over time. It becomes possible to evaluate the cost for each agency's services, 
such as the cost of a business license application or the cost to establish a child 
support order in Nevada's counties. The agencies also have tools to evaluate 
efficiency, such as the number of business license applications processed 
correctly or the time it takes to establish a child support order. 
 
The Executive Branch should publish the benchmarks on a public Website. 
Publication of the various agency goals and benchmarks will link government 
results to the State's goals and benchmarks. Publication will allow any 
interested Nevada citizen to access the results and will encourage broader use 
of performance measures by city and county government agencies. 
 
The impetus for this bill was two-fold: we need a plan if we want to get out of 
last place; and the performance indicators currently in use are not working. The 
attachment on A.B. 446 has examples of performance indicators from Texas as 
well as from Nevada (Exhibit F). The budget highlights, FTEs, performance 
highlights and measures assessments for each agency of the Texas government 
are clearly and concisely presented. Pages two and three are the benchmarks 
for the Board of Dental Examiners. Pages four and five are the benchmarks for 
the Optometry Board. The format is the same for both agencies.  
 
By contrast, the performance indicators for Nevada's Governor's Office of 
Energy Conservation for 2007 and 2009 shown on pages eight and nine, are 
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completely different. The goal is supposed to be to ensure a reliable and 
affordable energy supply for Nevada. If that is true, why do the indicators 
change? The first indicator for 2007 is "New installed residential and 
commercial solar photovoltaic capacity." From this performance indicator, one 
might infer the goal of the Office of Energy Conservation is to install solar cells. 
A more relevant measurement might be how many energy grant solicitations 
were issued, how many grants were applied for, how many applications were 
successful, how many sub-grants did they issue or what percentage of 
sub-grants were successfully completed. While the 2009 indicators are an 
improvement, they are more like performance highlights. The goal of 
100 percent of Leadership in Energy and Environmental Design property tax 
abatement applications to be processed within 120 days of receipt gives little 
information. How many applications were received? The percentage of time the 
Governor's and Legislature's annual reports are prepared on time is not a 
performance indicator: it is a requirement of law. These two pages are an 
example of what not to do. Each agency must articulate its performance goals, 
have meaningful benchmarks and a way to evaluate them over time. 
 
Page ten shows the performance indicators for the Nevada Board of Agriculture 
Gas Pollution Standards. The first four indicators are: the number of fuel 
program coordination meetings organized; the number of pertinent State and 
county air quality meetings attended; the number of target audiences reached 
through an air quality education outreach program; and the number of pertinent 
professional meetings attended. These performance indicators could lead one to 
believe the mission of this office is to attend meetings. The last two 
measurements, fuel samples analyzed and fuel standard violations reported, are 
relevant but not clearly stated. You would assume there is a potential of 
3,500 fuel samples analyzed in a year. It is unclear whether this is 100 percent 
of all gas stations, or some statistical sampling. If it is 100 percent, they could 
provide a clear bar chart showing the total number of stations, depots available, 
actual amounts tested and other relevant factors. In short, these performance 
indicators do not give the reviewer a clear idea of what is being done in this 
agency. 
 
The last page of this document, the performance indicators for the Labor 
Commissioner, is one of the better examples in the State. However, the 
performance goals are still not clearly stated. For FY 2007-2008, was the 
projected goal to investigate 80 percent of wage claims within 60 days? I do 
not need to belabor the point. There is a way to do this in a uniform, consistent 
manner that gives a true measure of an agency's performance, and we are not 
doing it. This Session we are committed to some broad goals. One goal is to 
ensure we have a stable budget despite a 44-percent loss of income. A second 
goal is to create long-term measures to help us in difficult economic times. And 
another is to establish a procedure for better planning and accountability. 
 
SENATOR COFFIN: 
I would like to know if the Texas budgets had any line-item details following 
these performance indicator metrics. Do you have any of those? 
 
ASSEMBLYWOMAN BUCKLEY: 
I do. We did a study of every state's performance indicators. I would be happy 
to share that with you. It is also on their Website. 
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SENATOR COFFIN: 
We have lost a level of detail over the last 25 years. We used to see a line-item 
budget, not merely performance indicators. We lost detail and gained poorly 
done metrics. Would you be willing to merge line-item detail into your bill? 
 
ASSEMBLYWOMAN BUCKLEY: 
I would be happy to support what you are working on. 
 
COCHAIR HORSFORD: 
Would this be done by the Budget Office? 
 
ASSEMBLYWOMAN BUCKLEY: 
Yes. 
 
COCHAIR HORSFORD: 
The examples you provided from Texas are exactly the type of information that 
would help legislators, the public and the agencies themselves to better 
understand what they are doing. How do we make the process consistent? As 
we have reviewed budgets this Session we have asked agencies about their 
indicators, and occasionally received responses indicating they were not even 
reviewed. The agencies seem to be apprehensive about the process, as though 
their budgets will not be approved if they do not meet a performance indicator. 
How can the process be streamlined so the information is consistent while 
retaining enough flexibility for variation across agencies? How can we convince 
agencies that performance indicators, goals or benchmarks are used over time 
to assess what is being done, not necessarily to find fault in order to punish? 
 
ASSEMBLYWOMAN BUCKLEY: 
First, a template must be created so all agencies have to follow the same 
model. This allows the Governor and the Legislature, as well as the citizens of 
Nevada, to compare apples to apples within the same agency from year-to-year 
and among other agencies. You may have some optional fields that would apply 
to some agencies, but not to all. With regard to ensuring honest reporting, that 
is the job of the Governor and the Legislature: failure to meet a goal is no 
different than the audit process we engage in as a Legislature. What A.B. 446 
does is allow an agency to audit itself. If there are ten goals, and mid-year or on 
a quarterly basis you see your staff are not completing your goals, what can a 
manager do? If you are a good manager, you call your staff together and find 
out why you are not meeting your goals and what can be done to change that.  
 
The fiscal note attached to this bill appears to be a form, and looks similar to 
the fiscal note attached to your bill. Agencies are currently required to report on 
performance indicators. The Assembly determined it should cost no more money 
than it currently does.  
 
COCHAIR HORSFORD: 
The fiscal note for A.B. 446 is exactly the same number as the fiscal note for a 
Senate bill which is similar but not identical. Are there any questions from the 
Committee? Is there anyone who would like to speak either for or against 
A.B. 446? 
 
ANDREW CLINGER (Director, Department of Administration): 
The fiscal note relates to the questions you were asking about creating 
consistency. We have been required to provide performance measures for a long 
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time. Part of the problem is the agencies need to be trained to put them 
together. You cannot merely give them a template and expect them to put good 
performance indicators together. I think this is a very good bill, but it requires 
resources to do it well. The fiscal note adds the necessary staff to train the 
agencies about how to create good performance measures. In addition, there 
are required systems changes and other details that require funding. 
 
COCHAIR HORSFORD: 
How does the process work currently? The performance indicators are a part of 
that process. 
 
MR. CLINGER: 
The performance indicators are a small part of the process currently. There is a 
0.5 FTE position in my office to train the agencies. The budget analysts in my 
office work with the agencies as much as they can to help them identify 
performance measures, but it requires more than a few hours to do well. A few 
days to a week of concerted effort is necessary to create a strategic plan with 
long-term goals and to implement performance measures. The workshops we 
provide are hands-on and the most successful are those where the agencies 
take the time to go through the process with us. 
 
COCHAIR HORSFORD: 
Performance measures are required by law. Assemblywoman Buckley is not 
asking for the development of a new requirement. Why can this not be 
incorporated into the budget process? I do not understand why resources are 
not available through Personnel or some other avenue within the Administration. 
Is that not the role of those entities through the Governor's Office to make this 
process more useful? The internal processes an agency has for strategic 
planning need to be fleshed out into performance benchmarks on which the 
public, first and foremost, can judge them. With the current infrastructure and 
requirements, why is the large fiscal note required to make this happen? 
 
MR. CLINGER: 
You are correct. This is currently in law. Have we done an adequate job over 
the last ten years? No. We have not because we have not dedicated the 
necessary resources to accomplish it. You can pass A.B. 446 and not 
appropriate any funds for this. I am afraid what you will see in two years is no 
real improvement in the quality of the performance measures. 
 
COCHAIR HORSFORD: 
If you made it a priority it could be accomplished. 
 
MR. CLINGER: 
I have made it a priority. We do not have the resources to do it the way this bill 
intends. 
 
SENATOR COFFIN: 
The Texas model is different. I have been looking at the Website of the Texas 
Legislative Budget Board for the last few minutes. A joint permanent committee 
of the Legislature oversees the process so there are significant financial 
resources devoted to this process. It essentially directs the agencies how to do 
reports; the Legislature tells them what to say and how to create the reports. It 
takes some of the burden off the Executive Branch. A lot could be accomplished 
with graphics changes. The Texas examples provided by 



Senate Committee on Finance 
May 13, 2009 
Page 15 
 
Assemblywoman Buckley are more readable and consumer friendly. These kinds 
of changes could be accomplished with a small expenditure. 
 
MR. CLINGER: 
I agree the reports and examples provided by Assemblywoman Buckley are 
useful. It is not producing the reports that drives the fiscal note; it is the quality 
of the data that goes into the reports. If all we were concerned about was 
creating reports, we could eliminate the fiscal note. We need to do a better job 
of training the agencies to create performance measures. 
 
SENATOR COFFIN: 
It sounds to me as if it must be a joint endeavor between the Legislature and 
the Budget Office. I think your fiscal note is high, but I agree some investment 
is probably necessary. 
 
MR. CLINGER: 
Fiscal notes are created in a short time frame. They are often "best guesses." It 
could be refined. 
 
SENATOR COFFIN: 
How many positions are you down in your office? 
 
MR. CLINGER: 
All of our budget analyst positions are filled. We have a couple of positions 
vacant, but they are not analysts. 
 
COCHAIR HORSFORD: 
Is there anyone else here to testify on A.B. 446? 
 
CAROLE VILARDO (President, Nevada Taxpayers Association): 
I support A.B. 446. The "Rainy Day Fund" has been critical. The Legislature had 
a committee in the early 1990s to study the evaluation and performance 
measures. I would like to see an expansion and an improvement, even if it is not 
part of the budget document. It is useful to have more than the five or 
six indicators. We urge you to process the bill. 
 
SENATOR COFFIN: 
Ms. Vilardo, do you agree we need more detail? 
 
MS. VILARDO: 
I thought it was interesting when the budget format was changed. It was 
supposed to reduce the number of pages of the budgets, but it has not. I do not 
know how you solve those problems. The budgets of many of my colleagues 
are done on performance-based measurements. 
 
COCHAIR MATHEWS: 
It is important for performance measures to be included in the budget process. 
 
COCHAIR HORSFORD: 
We will close the hearing on A.B. 446. 
 
We will open the hearing on S.B. 421. 
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SENATE BILL 421: Temporarily suspends longevity pay and merit pay increases 

for state employees. (BDR S-1193) 
 
MR. CLINGER: 
Senate Bill 421 implements the Governor's recommendation to suspend 
longevity and merit pay increases to State employees over the next two fiscal 
years. The intent of this bill is to suspend the next four merit payments. There is 
at least one agency that will pay the next merit increase normally out of the 
current fiscal year. To make it equitable, we need to ensure the next four 
longevity payments are not made by any agency. I would like to work with Staff 
to make any technical adjustments necessary to ensure that intent is followed. 
 
COCHAIR HORSFORD: 
Is there anyone who would like to speak for S.B. 421? 
 
JANE A. NICHOLS, PH.D. (Vice Chancellor for Academic and Student Affairs, 

Nevada System of Higher Education): 
First, I have a comment on A.B. 446. The University System has asked for more 
emphasis on performance indicators in our budget for a long time. Regarding 
S.B. 421, I reluctantly support S.B. 421. It is important to us for our classified 
employees. Without the State resources to pay for longevity and merit 
increases, we are here reluctantly to support this bill. 
 
DENNIS MALLORY (Chief of Staff, American Federation of State, County and 

Municipal Employees, AFL-CIO): 
We are here reluctantly to support S.B. 421. However, I understood that there 
would be a mechanism to reinstate merit increases and longevity pay if the 
economy improved during the biennium. I do not see such a mechanism in the 
bill as it is written. If it could be incorporated, we would appreciate it. 
 
ROB POTTER (Representative, American Federation of State, County and 

Municipal Employees, AFL-CIO): 
I reluctantly support S.B. 421. As State employees, every time there has been a 
budget shortfall, we have done our part. We will do our part by taking the 
suspension of the longevity pay and the merit pay. I come from a two-State 
worker family. The impact of the pay reduction, the suspension of longevity and 
merit pay, the increase in costs for our benefits and the furlough will amount to 
a cut of approximately $800 each month from our income. As State employees, 
we know we have to be a part of the solution to the budget problem. I hope 
that when the opportunity presents itself for A.B. 395, our willingness to 
contribute is taken into account. 
 
ASSEMBLY BILL 395: Provides for workplace relations discussions and 

agreements for certain state employees. (BDR 23-1020) 
 
MR. DREHER: 
About 50 percent of our members are State law enforcement officers. In the 
economic downturn, we also reluctantly support the suspension of longevity 
and merit payments in S.B. 421. We also agree that a mechanism should be put 
into place so that these payments could be reinstated in the second year of the 
biennium if the economy recovers. 
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COCHAIR HORSFORD: 
Is there anyone else who would like to testify either for or against S.B. 421? 
Seeing no one else, we will close the hearing on S.B. 421. 
 
We will now open the hearing on A.B. 528. 
 
ASSEMBLY BILL 528 (1st Reprint): Temporarily suspends the requirement that 

the State Library and Archives be open to the public during certain days 
and hours. (BDR 33-1198) 

 
MICHAEL E. FISCHER (Director, Department of Cultural Affairs): 
This is basically a housekeeping measure to bring the Department of Cultural 
Affairs into line with the budget as it is being proposed. The public hours of the 
Nevada State Library and Archives are being reduced to four hours a day, five 
days a week. 
 
COCHAIR HORSFORD: 
Are there any questions? Is there anyone else who would like to speak on 
A.B. 528?  
 
 SENATOR MATHEWS MOVED TO DO PASS A.B. 528. 
 
 SENATOR HARDY SECONDED THE MOTION. 
 
SENATOR COFFIN: 
I oppose this in lieu of knowing what it will accomplish with our budgets. I 
believe the library and archives should be opened these minimal hours. 
Weekdays means five days a week, not seven days a week. 
 
COCHAIR HORSFORD: 
It is my understanding A.B. 528 would provide flexibility so that if additional 
funds are appropriated they could add additional hours or days. Currently, they 
are required to be open a number of days, but the budget does not appropriate 
enough funds for them to be open all of those days. 
 
MR. FISCHER: 
The library is now open five days a week. I would like to see it open seven days 
a week. The statutory change addresses what we may have to do, and it allows 
us to go forward with what may be the budget as adopted. 
 
SENATOR COFFIN: 
The summary of A.B. 528 indicates a temporary suspension. But neither the 
digest of the Legal Counsel nor the statute indicates it is temporary. There is a 
conflict. The record should state the Legislature intends this to be a temporary 
change. 
 
COCHAIR HORSFORD: 
The bill expires on June 30, 2011. 
 
SENATOR COFFIN: 
Does the proposal you have submitted to add back funding indicate a return to 
normal operating hours? 
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MR. FISCHER: 
Yes, it does. 
 
 THE MOTION CARRIED. (SENATOR RAGGIO WAS ABSENT FOR THE 

VOTE.) 
 

***** 
 
COCHAIR HORSFORD: 
We will now open the hearing on A.B. 536. 
 
ASSEMBLY BILL 536: Requires the transfer of a certain sum of money from the 

Amateur Boxing Program Reserve of the Nevada Athletic Commission to 
the State General Fund. (BDR S-1213) 

 
DIANNE CORNWALL (Director, Department of Business and Industry): 
We support A.B. 536 as it is written. 
 
COCHAIR HORSFORD: 
Based on the action of the Joint Subcommittee on General Government and 
Accountability, I do not think we agree with this bill anymore. The Governor has 
proposed the transfer of $155,865 from the Amateur Boxing Program reserve to 
the State General Fund. Based on information we received, these dollars 
primarily fund youth boxing programs sponsored by agencies such as the Police 
Athletic League. It was indicated those funds were not needed by those 
programs. We contacted the entities who informed us they could use the 
money. The Senate Subcommittee closed without reverting these dollars and 
allowed the Athletic Commission to maintain the funds for the purpose for 
which they are currently used. The State's budget problems will not be solved 
with $155,000 taken from youth programs. 
 
MR. GHIGGERI: 
This bill was scheduled to facilitate closing the budgets if the Senate and 
Assembly take different closing actions. 
 
COCHAIR HORSFORD: 
Is there anyone who would like to speak on A.B. 536? Seeing none, we will 
close the hearing on A.B. 536. 
 
COCHAIR MATHEWS: 
We will now hear the closing report from the Joint Subcommittee on Health and 
Human Services, Department of Health and Human Services, Health Division. 
 
LAURA FREED (Program Analyst, Fiscal Analysis Division, Legislative Counsel 

Bureau): 
The Joint Subcommittee reviewed the 18 budgets of the State Health Division. 
The Subcommittee recommendations result in a General Fund reduction of 
$1.6 million in FY 2009-2010 and $1.5 million in FY 2010-2011. The following 
comments describe the more significant recommendations of the Joint 
Subcommittee. 
 
The first budget account is Health Statistics and Planning.  
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HUMAN SERVICES 
 
HEALTH  
 
HHS - Health Statistics and Planning – Budget Page HEALTH-20 (Volume II) 
Budget Account 101-3190 
 
The Subcommittee accepted a budget amendment to eliminate a previously 
recommended E-605 budget reduction unit from this account, as the decision 
unit had incorrectly reduced General Funds in order to balance a reduction in the 
behavioral risk factor survey category. The amendment restored $486,102 in 
State General Fund to this budget over the 2009-2011 biennium. In addition, 
the Subcommittee approved General Fund of $236,124 over the biennium to 
support software maintenance needs, particularly for the electronic death 
registry system. 
 
E-605 Budget Reductions – Page HEALTH-23 
 
The next budget account is Early Intervention Services.  
 
HHS - Early Intervention Services – Budget Page HEALTH-43 (Volume II) 
Budget Account 101-3208 
 
The Subcommittee approved two caseload enhancement decision units, funded 
with a General Fund appropriation of $6.5 million over the 
2009-2011 biennium. The total caseload enhancement is actually $10.4 million 
over the biennium, but $3.9 million in federal stimulus funds was utilized in 
order to fund a portion of the enhancement. The caseload enhancements are 
designed to eliminate the list of children who have been waiting for intervention 
therapies longer than 30 days, and to address new caseload growth at a 
monthly projected growth rate of 1.8 percent. The enhanced funding will not be 
used in Early Intervention Services clinics, but rather will be provided to 
nonprofit organizations that contract with the program to provide intervention 
services to children. 
 
The next budget account is the Public Health Tobacco Fund.  
 
HHS - Public Health Tobacco Fund – Budget Page HEALTH-51 (Volume II) 
Budget Account 263-3212 
 
The Committee will recall that the interest income earned by the Trust Fund for 
Public Health supports this budget's operation of a grant program. However, 
since the Legislature has diverted funds from the Trust Fund for Public Health in 
order to realize budget reductions, there is projected to be only $1.1 million in 
the trust fund by the end of the current biennium. Therefore, the Subcommittee 
approved the elimination of this budget account for the duration of the 
2009-2011 biennium, as it would not have sufficient interest income to provide 
grants for public health projects. The Subcommittee also approved issuance of a 
letter of intent instructing the Health Division to consult with the Budget 
Division and the Fiscal Analysis Division on whether to include the Public Health 
Tobacco Fund in its budget request for the 2011-2013 biennium. 
 
The next budget account is Immunization.  
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HHS - Immunization Program – Budget Page HEALTH-55 (Volume II) 
Budget Account 101-3213 
 
The Subcommittee approved the reinstatement of the immunization registry 
program effort. This enhancement was approved by the 2007 Legislature, but 
with the instruction to remove it from the Base Budget for 2009-2011. This 
recommendation by the Subcommittee reinstates the State program officer 
position and provides funding for contract Information Technology (IT) workers 
to design and update the WebIZ database, which health-care providers use to 
enter childhood immunization date. The total cost of this enhancement is 
$256,260 in FY 2009-2010 and $209,230 in FY 2010-2011, half of which is 
funded by the General Fund and half of which is funded by the federal 
immunization grant. Therefore, the total cost to the General Fund is $127,754 
in FY 2009-2010 and $104,235 in FY 2010-2011. Furthermore, the 
Subcommittee instructed the Health Division to seek federal stimulus or other 
funds that could offset the General Fund in this enhancement. 
 
The next budget account is Communicable Diseases. 
 
HHS – Communicable Diseases – Budget Page HEALTH-70 (Volume II) 
Budget Account 101-3215 
 
Caseload projections indicate that there may not be sufficient funding for AIDS 
Drug Assistance Program (ADAP) clients' medications in the upcoming 
biennium. The Subcommittee was informed that the Division plans to direct 
more of its federal Ryan White Grant monies to medication and less to 
"wraparound" services, such as counseling and drug treatment, in order to 
handle the anticipated caseload. Therefore, as a result of concerns about 
possible caseload growth, the Subcommittee did not accept a budget 
amendment to reduce General Fund from this budget. The Subcommittee 
recommends a total of $1.9 million in each year of the 2009-2011 biennium for 
ADAP medications. Pharmaceutical rebates are also expected to increase 
somewhat in the upcoming biennium. The Subcommittee also approved adding 
language to the Appropriations Act giving the Health Division the flexibility to 
transfer its General Fund appropriations between fiscal years of the biennium 
with approval of the IFC, but with the condition that it present cost containment 
measures for ADAP if it requests a General Fund transfer. 
 
The next budget account is Health Facilities Hospital Licensing.  
 
HHS - Health Facilities Hospital Licensing – Budget Page HEALTH-80 (Volume II) 
Budget Account 101-3216 
 
The Subcommittee approved the addition of 11 new health facility surveyors to 
this budget in order to bring the time between inspections of facilities down to 
every 18 months, except where more frequent inspections are mandated. In 
addition, one new biostatistician and one new administrative assistant were 
approved. The total cost for these 13 new positions is $790,562 in 
FY 2009-2010 and $974,304 in FY 2010-2011, funded by reserved fees. The 
Subcommittee did not approve the recommendation to add one new 
management analyst position. The management analyst would have helped to 
develop new policies and program guidance as a result of health facility survey 
trends uncovered by more rigorous data analysis and interpreted the statistical 
findings of the new biostatistician position which the Subcommittee did 
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approve. The Subcommittee felt that the Bureau management could effectively 
develop the program guidance and that the biostatistician should be able to 
interpret the meaning of the data as an inherent part of that job. 
 
The next budget account is Health Administration. 
 
HHS - Office of Health Administration – Budget Page HEALTH-124 (Volume II) 
Budget Account 101-3223 
 
The Subcommittee endorsed the Division-wide reorganization plan, which 
reduces the number of Health Division Bureaus from six to four, eliminates 
41.77 duplicative positions across the Division, and transfers 30 positions 
within the Division in order to align the duties of the new Bureaus' staffs. In this 
budget, 13 positions were approved for elimination, but 13 other positions were 
approved to transfer in for the purpose of consolidating the fiscal and 
accounting services within Health Administration. 
 
The next budget account is Emergency Medical Services (EMS).  
 
HHS - Emergency Medical Services – Budget Page HEALTH-150 (Volume II) 
Budget Account 101-3235 
 
An Executive Branch audit during FY 2007-2008 recommended that the Medical 
Marijuana Registry Program be transferred from the Department of Agriculture 
to the Health Division. The Registry provides cards enabling chronically ill people 
to purchase or possess certain amounts of marijuana, as authorized under 
NRS 453A. The Governor recommended placing the Medical Marijuana program 
within this budget. Instead, the Subcommittee approved the addition of the 
Medical Marijuana program budget to the Executive Budget and the transfer of 
one program position from this EMS budget to the Medical Marijuana budget, 
where it will be funded by registration and application fees. The position was 
formerly funded by General Fund appropriations, so $97,128 in General Fund 
was saved over the upcoming biennium by transferring one position from the 
EMS budget to the Medical Marijuana budget. 
 
The following budgets were closed by the Subcommittee largely as 
recommended by the Governor, with some technical adjustments as 
recommended by Fiscal Staff: 
 
HHS - Radiological Health – Budget Page HEALTH-1 (Volume II) 
Budget Account 101-3101 
 
HHS - Health Radioactive & Hazardous Waste – Budget Page HEALTH-11  
 (Volume II) 
Budget Account 251-3152 
 
HHS - Cancer Control Registry – Budget Page HEALTH-14 (Volume II) 
Budget Account 101-3153 
 
HHS - Consumer Health Protection – Budget Page HEALTH-28 (Volume II) 
Budget Account 101-3194 
 
HHS - Office of Minority Health – Budget Page HEALTH-38 (Volume II) 
Budget Account 101-3204 
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HHS - WIC Food Supplement – Budget Page HEALTH-62 (Volume II) 
Budget Account 101-3214 
 
HHS - Public Health Preparedness Program – Budget Page HEALTH-92 

(Volume II) 
Budget Account 101-3218 
 
HHS – Chronic Disease – Budget Page HEALTH-103 (Volume II) 
Budget Account 101-3220 
 
HHS - Maternal Child Health Services – Budget Page HEALTH-111 (Volume II) 
Budget Account 101-3222 
 
HHS - Community Health Services – Budget Page HEALTH-137 (Volume II) 
Budget Account 101-3224 
 
 SENATOR COFFIN MOVED TO ADOPT THE SUBCOMMITTEE REPORT. 
 
 SENATOR RAGGIO SECONDED THE MOTION. 
 
 THE MOTION CARRIED. (SENATORS HORSFORD AND HARDY WERE 

ABSENT FOR THE VOTE.) 
 

***** 
 
COCHAIR MATHEWS: 
We will now move to the Personnel budgets. 
 
FINANCE AND ADMINISTRATION 
 
PERSONNEL 
 
State Unemployment Compensation – Budget Page PERSONNEL-9 (Volume I) 
Budget Account 101-1339 
 
MR. GHIGGERI: 
Last week we had planned to close the Department of Personnel which includes 
its operating budget and the Unemployment Compensation Fund. We received 
notice about two hours before the meeting that the Unemployment 
Compensation Fund would be running out of money. Between last week and 
today, Ms. Coffman has been working with the Department of Personnel to 
determine what increase to the unemployment assessment would be required to 
make the fund solvent again. Staff estimates an additional $1 million in 
General Fund for FY 2009-2010 and $500,000 for FY 2010-2011 will be 
needed due to this issue. 
 
GREG T. WEYLAND, MBA, CPM (Division Administrator, Administrative Services, 

Department of Personnel): 
The quarterly payments to Employment Security for our portion have increased 
45 percent from the quarter ending December 2008 to the quarter ending 
March 2009. The expectation is that unemployment claims will continue to 
increase into this last quarter at the same rate. We have submitted a work 
program for FY 2008-2009 to move funds out of reserve and receive authority 
to make the payments we expect to occur during the last quarter of this fiscal 
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year. Our reserves will be low if this transfer of funds is approved. We will need 
to increase the rate from 0.47 percent to 0.7 percent to allow us to make 
payments and begin to build up reserves again. 
 
SARAH COFFMAN (Program Analyst, Fiscal Analysis Division, Legislative Counsel 

Bureau): 
Staff has reviewed the Department of Personnel's increased projection of the 
0.7 percent and it appears to be accurate. With the increased rate, an increase 
in General Fund appropriations of $1.36 million in the first year of the biennium 
and $554,405 in the second year of the biennium would be required. The 
Department can reduce its assessment at any time during the interim. If the 
projected payouts do not materialize, they could reduce this rate with the 
permission of the IFC. 
 
SENATOR COFFIN: 
Is this a change in the assessment for all employers in the State? 
 
MR. WEYLAND: 
I do not have that information; however the Department of Employment, 
Training and Rehabilitation economist is here and may be able to address that 
for you. 
 
SENATOR COFFIN: 
That is a big increase in the assessment. 
 
DAVID SCHMIDT (Economist, Research and Analysis Bureau, Department of 

Employment, Training and Rehabilitation): 
We are anticipating a large increase in the amount of payments the Department 
of Personnel will need to make for unemployment claims. This is largely due to 
the State extended benefits program. Currently, the level of claims we are 
paying is based on the regular Unemployment Insurance program which is a 
26-week period of claims. The federal government extension program provides 
an extra 33 weeks of benefits paid for by the federal government. People are 
now starting to run out of those benefit payments. Because of the high 
unemployment in the State, we have a State extended benefit program. The 
State of Nevada, as an employer, will be responsible for paying those benefits. 
The Nevada extended benefits program lasts for 20 weeks. 
 
SENATOR COFFIN: 
What is the rate that will be assessed on all employers in the State? 
 
MS. COFFMAN: 
That rate will be 0.7 percent versus the 0.35 percent recommended by the 
Governor. 
 
SENATOR COFFIN: 
What is the rate for private employers, not the State agencies? 
 
MR. SCHMIDT: 
The unemployment tax collected from private employers will be determined in 
October at the Employment Security Council meeting. That rate is set separately 
from this process. 
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SENATOR COFFIN: 
We are in the midst of finalizing tax bills. Part of the tax solution has been 
rumored to be an increase in the payroll tax, a modified business tax. This is a 
large increase for the State. I need to know what will be asked of Nevada 
employers over the next year or two so we can factor that into our deliberations 
on payroll taxes. 
 
MR. SCHMIDT: 
I do not have any specific numbers. The best person to consult with would be 
Ms. Cindy Jones, the Administrator of the Employment Security Division. The 
Unemployment Trust Fund balance is currently approximately $350 million, 
down from the $800 million surplus we had going into the recession. There will 
be an impact, but I do not know what exactly the impact will be. 
 
SENATOR RAGGIO: 
Did we extend the benefits to qualify for the American Recovery and 
Reinvestment Act (ARRA) funding? 
 
MR. SCHMIDT: 
Yes, the State extended benefits were lengthened from 13 weeks to 20 weeks. 
 
SENATOR RAGGIO: 
Was that a requirement for the ARRA funding? 
 
MR. SCHMIDT: 
That provision was required to get complete federal reimbursement for private 
employers for the State extended benefits. Otherwise, the benefits would have 
been 50 percent payable from the State trust fund and 50 percent payable from 
the federal government. 
 
SENATOR RAGGIO: 
Are we also considering the potential of borrowing from the federal government 
to replenish our fund? 
 
MR. SCHMIDT: 
I believe that is a possibility. 
 
SENATOR RAGGIO: 
I thought our discussion was to deplete the State fund and then to borrow from 
the federal program. Will we face an even greater rate increase if we are 
required to borrow funding? 
 
MR. SCHMIDT: 
The reserve balance Mr. Weyland is talking about is separate from the 
Unemployment Trust Fund. The rates do not necessarily affect one another 
directly. 
 
SENATOR RAGGIO: 
Are you saying a further rate increase would not be necessary even if we 
borrowed? 
 
MR. WEYLAND: 
We will not be borrowing for the State's employees; that program is pay as you 
go. We are increasing the rate to ensure we have adequate funds to make the 
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quarterly payments. I do not know if there would be an effect. If we continue to 
have higher unemployment, we would have to adjust this rate again. Using our 
current projections, the 0.7 percent increase will allow us to meet our 
obligations while adding to our reserve. 
 
SENATOR RAGGIO: 
Will part of this rate increase be used to add to the reserve that is declining 
rapidly? 
 
MR. WEYLAND: 
Yes. 
 
SENATOR RAGGIO: 
Unless something unexpected occurs, will that obviate the necessity for 
borrowing? 
 
MR. WEYLAND: 
We will not be borrowing for this fund for State employees. The borrowed 
monies will be for the other employers in the State. If the State must lay off 
additional personnel, and the total payroll decreases, the assessment rate 
generates fewer funds. 
 
SENATOR RAGGIO: 
Who will be paying the 0.7 percent? 
 
MR. WEYLAND: 
These amounts are assessments allocated to each agency's payroll. 
 
SENATOR RAGGIO: 
This rate only applies to State agencies? 
 
MR. WEYLAND: 
That is correct. 
 
COCHAIR MATHEWS: 
Are there any other questions from the Committee? 
 
MR. GHIGGERI: 
We need a motion from the Committee to close the Unemployment 
Compensation Fund for State agencies at the rate of 0.7 percent for the 
biennium. 
 
 SENATOR COFFIN MOVED TO CLOSE B/A 101-1339 WITH A 

0.7 PERCENT RATE OF ASSESSMENT. 
 
MS. COFFMAN: 
This rate is assessed on a calendar year. The Department of Personnel will 
present a work program for the next six months to begin the 0.7 percent rate 
increase. However, in my projections the rate should be decreased, in the 
second half of FY 2010-2011, to 0.25 percent to eliminate some of the reserve. 
The rate will increase to 0.7 percent from July 1, 2009 through 
December 31, 2010. From January 1, 2011 to June 30, 2011, the rate will 
decrease to 0.25 percent.  
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SENATOR COFFIN: 
Let me restate what you said to be sure that I understand you. The current rate 
is 0.47 percent. The rate will increase to 0.7 percent through 
December 31, 2010. Beginning January 1, 2011 the rate will decrease to 0.25 
percent. Will that be sufficient? 
 
MS. COFFMAN: 
Yes. 
 
SENATOR COFFIN: 
Will the IFC be involved in any resetting of the rates in the interim? 
 
MS. COFFMAN: 
The rates as I outlined them will provide a reserve of approximately $2.2 million 
at the end of FY 2010-2011. 
 
SENATOR COFFIN: 
Do we need to grant authority to the IFC to reset rates? 
 
MS. COFFMAN: 
The IFC currently has that authority. 
 
COCHAIR MATHEWS: 
Is there a second for Senator Coffin's motion? 
 
 SENATOR WOODHOUSE SECONDED THE MOTION. 
 
 THE MOTION CARRIED. (SENATOR HORSFORD WAS ABSENT FOR THE 

VOTE.) 
 

***** 
 
COCHAIR MATHEWS: 
We will now move to the Closing Report for the Joint Subcommittee on K-12 
and Higher Education, Department of Education and Commission on 
Post-Secondary Education. 
 
JOI DAVIS (Program Analyst, Fiscal Analysis Division, Legislative Counsel 

Bureau): 
The Joint Subcommittee on K-12 and Higher Education completed its review of 
the budget accounts for the Department of Education, except the Distributive 
School Account, Other State Education Programs, the School Remediation Trust 
Fund, and the Incentives for Licensed Educational Personnel budgets, which will 
be presented at a later date.  
 
EDUCATION 
 
K-12 EDUCATION 
 
NDE - Distributive School Account – Budget Page K-12 ED-4 (Volume I) 
Budget Account 101-2610 
 
NDE - Other State Education Programs – Budget Page K-12 ED-11 (Volume I) 
Budget Account 101-2699 
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NDE - School Remediation Trust Fund – Budget Page K-12 ED-22 (Volume I) 
Budget Account 101-2615 
 
Incentives for Licensed Educational Personnel – Budget Page K-12 ED-1 

(Volume I) 
Budget Account 101-2616 
 
The closing actions of the Subcommittee resulted in a decrease in General Fund 
support for these budgets of approximately $1.1 million in FY 2009-2010 and 
$745,000 in FY 2010-2011. The following highlights the more significant 
closing recommendations of the Subcommittee. 
 
The first budget account is Education Support Services.  
 
NDE - Education Support Services – Budget Page K-12 ED-49 (Volume I) 
Budget Account 101-2720 
 
The Subcommittee approved the Governor's recommendation for a new budget 
analyst and a new auditor in this account to assist with increased workload, 
growing student enrollment and an increase in the number of federal grants. The 
budget analyst and one-half of the auditor position will be funded through 
indirect costs, with the other one-half of the auditor funded by the federal child 
nutrition programs. 
 
The next budget account is Proficiency Testing.  
 
NDE - Proficiency Testing – Budget Page K-12 ED-59 (Volume I) 
Budget Account 101-2697 
 
The Subcommittee recommended approval of Budget Amendment No. 24 which 
redirects a portion of the contract costs for the High School Proficiency 
Exam (HSPE) and the Criterion-Referenced Test (CRT) to the Individuals with 
Disabilities (IDEA) budget. The amendment also converts two contract positions 
to Department staff positions, adds a new business process analyst position to 
provide "help desk" functions for the automated data systems, and provides for 
annual software maintenance and licensing fees for the System of 
Accountability Information in Nevada (SAIN). 
 
The Subcommittee eliminated the Governor's recommended inflationary 
adjustment in the HSPE and CRT contract costs in FY 2010-2011, for a 
General Fund savings of $145,367. In addition, the Subcommittee approved the 
Governor's recommendation to eliminate the Norm-Referenced Test from the 
Proficiency Testing program. 
 
The Governor recommended the transfer of two federally-funded positions to 
the Proficiency Testing budget to be funded with State General Funds; however, 
based on the duties of those positions, the Subcommittee recommended 
modifying the transfer and continuing to provide 25 percent of the cost of one 
of the positions from federal funds. 
 
The net General Fund savings of the Subcommittee's recommendations in this 
account are approximately $1.1 million in FY 2009-2010 and $745,000 in 
FY 2010-2011. 
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The next budget account is Teacher Education and Licensing.  
 
NDE - Teacher Education and Licensing – Budget Page K-12 ED-66 (Volume I) 
Budget Account 101-2705 
 
The Subcommittee approved the Governor's recommendation for enhancements 
to the Teacher Licensing System in the amount of $344,083 over the biennium, 
and increased the Governor's recommendations for a new telephone system for 
the Las Vegas Office by $23,421 in FY 2009-2010 to ensure the system will be 
compatible with the State telephone system. 
 
The next budget account is Discretionary Grants – Restricted.  
 
NDE - Discretionary Grants - Restricted – Budget Page K-12 ED-94 (Volume I) 
Budget Account 101-2709 
 
The Subcommittee authorized federal ARRA funds for the Homeless Children 
and Youth Grant in the amount of $523,263 in FY 2009-2010. The funds will 
be distributed to school districts to ensure that homeless youth have equal 
access to the same public education available to other children. 
 
The federal Charter School Grant that has historically been included in this 
account expired in September 2008 and was not renewed. The Subcommittee 
recommended a letter of intent be directed to the Department of Education to 
provide a report to the IFC for the November 2009 meeting that identifies the 
weaknesses in the Charter School Grant application that lead to the loss of the 
grant and a plan of improvement for future grant applications. The letter of 
intent would also direct the Department to provide a report for the June 2010 
IFC meeting indicating the number of charter schools that applied for the 
Charter School Grant and were awarded the grant and number of charter 
schools denied the grant. 
 
The next budget account is Elementary and Secondary Education – Title I.  
 
NDE - Elementary & Secondary ED - Title I – Budget Page K-12 ED-102 

(Volume I) 
Budget Account 101-2712 
 
The Subcommittee approved the authority to receive ARRA Title I funds of 
approximately $35 million in FY 2009-2010. This represents one-half of the 
total award which will be distributed to school districts to provide assistance to 
at-risk students. The other half of the ARRA Title I funds will be awarded by 
October 1, 2009, if the Department meets certain record-keeping and reporting 
requirements as prescribed by ARRA. 
 
The next budget account is Elementary and Secondary Education – Titles II, V 
and VI.  
 
NDE - Elementary & Secondary ED Titles II, V, & VI – Budget Page K-12 ED-112 

(Volume I) 
Budget Account 101-2713 
 
The Subcommittee approved the authority to receive ARRA Educational 
Technology Grant funds of approximately $4.3 million in FY 2009-2010. The 
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funds are anticipated by October 1, 2009, and will be distributed to school 
districts to assist in improving student achievement through the use of 
technology in the classroom. 
 
The next budget account is Career and Technical Education.  
 
NDE - Career and Technical Education – Budget Page K-12 ED-124 (Volume I) 
Budget Account 101-2676 
 
Due to anticipated decreases in the Carl D. Perkins federal grant, the 
Executive Budget recommended the elimination of two positions in this account. 
However, recent information indicates the grant has not been reduced as much 
as anticipated and sufficient funds are available to continue these positions. The 
Subcommittee recommends the restoration of these two positions. 
 
The next budget account is Individuals with Disabilities Education (IDEA).  
 
NDE - Individuals with Disabilities (IDEA) – Budget Page K-12 ED-145 (Volume I) 
Budget Account 101-2715 
 
The Subcommittee approved the authority to receive ARRA funds for the IDEA 
of approximately $34.8 million. This represents one-half of the total award 
which will be distributed to school districts to assist in the increased cost of 
providing special education services to students with disabilities. As with the 
Title I funds mentioned earlier, the other half of the ARRA funds will be awarded 
by October 1, 2009, if the Department meets certain record-keeping and 
reporting requirements as prescribed by ARRA. 
 
The following budgets were closed by the Subcommittee largely as 
recommended by the Governor, with some technical adjustments as 
recommended by Fiscal Staff: 
 
NDE - Education State Programs – Budget Page K-12 ED-26 (Volume I) 
Budget Account 101-2673 
 
NDE - Education Staffing Services – Budget Page K-12 ED-38 (Volume I) 
Budget Account 101-2719 
 
NDE - Drug Abuse Education – Budget Page K-12 ED-75 (Volume I) 
Budget Account 101-2605 
 
NDE - School Health Education - AIDS – Budget Page K-12 ED-79 (Volume I) 
Budget Account 101-2611 
 
NDE - GEAR UP – Budget Page K-12 ED-84 (Volume I) 
Budget Account 101-2678 
 
NDE - Other Unrestricted Accounts – Budget Page K-12 ED-88 (Volume I) 
Budget Account 101-2706 
 
NDE - Student Incentive Grants – Budget Page K-12 ED-121 (Volume I) 
Budget Account 101-2606 
 



Senate Committee on Finance 
May 13, 2009 
Page 30 
 
NDE - Continuing Education – Budget Page K-12 ED-130 (Volume I) 
Budget Account 101-2680 
 
NDE - Nutrition Education Programs – Budget Page K-12 ED-136 (Volume I) 
Budget Account 101-2691 
 
NDE - Commission on Postsecondary Education – Budget Page K-12 ED-153 
 (Volume I) 
Budget Account 101-2666 
 
COCHAIR MATHEWS: 
Does the Committee have any concerns or questions? 
 
SENATOR COFFIN: 
I am unsure of the source of the protest letters I have been getting. They are 
mostly from rural Nevada school districts. There was an elimination or reduction 
of a program they protested. 
 
COCHAIR MATHEWS: 
Did anyone else on the Committee get these letters? I see no other Committee 
members have received them. It must not be related to this budget. 
 
 SENATOR RAGGIO MOVED TO ACCEPT THE RECOMMENDATIONS OF 

THE SUBCOMMITTEE. 
 
 SENATOR HARDY SECONDED THE MOTION. 
 
 THE MOTION CARRIED. (SENATOR HORSFORD WAS ABSENT FOR THE 

VOTE.) 
 

***** 
 
COCHAIR MATHEWS: 
We will now move to the Joint Subcommittee on Human Services and CIPS 
Closing Report: The Department of Health and Human Services, Division of 
Child and Family Services. 
 
REX GOODMAN (Program Analyst, Fiscal Analysis Division, Legislative Counsel 

Bureau): 
Two items have been changed from the Subcommittee recommendation for the 
closing of these budgets. I will draw your attention to them when we reach 
them. 
 
The Joint Subcommittee completed its review of the 19 budgets of the Division 
of Child and Family Services. The recommendations of the Subcommittee result 
in a General Fund reduction of $373,920 in FY 2009-2010 and $402,184 in 
FY 2010-2011. The Subcommittee approved adjustments to several budgets to 
reflect increased Federal Medicaid Assistance Percentages (FMAP) in each year 
of the 2009-2011 biennium based on provisions of the ARRA. The adjustments 
allow for the replacement of General Fund support with federal funds which 
provides a General Fund savings in the Division of approximately $3 million in 
FY 2009-2010 and $3.2 million in FY 2010-2011. The other significant 
recommendations of the Subcommittee are described in the following 
comments. 
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The first budget account is Community Juvenile Justice Programs.  
 
HUMAN SERVICES 
 
CHILD AND FAMILY SERVICES  
 
HHS - Community Juvenile Justice Programs – Budget Page DCFS-1 (Volume III) 
Budget Account 101-1383 
 
The Subcommittee approved additional General Funds in the amount of 
$466,904 in each year of the 2009-2011 biennium to increase the Community 
Corrections Block Grant which is provided to the judicial districts Statewide to 
support programs that reduce the number of youth that are placed in State 
juvenile correctional facilities. With reductions in beds at the three State juvenile 
Correctional facilities recommended by the Governor, the Subcommittee 
supported increased funding for diversionary programs in this budget as well as 
additional youth parole counselors in the youth parole services budget. The 
Subcommittee also approved the elimination of one program officer position, as 
recommended by the Governor. 
 
The next budget account is Washoe County Integration.  
 
HHS - Washoe County Integration – Budget Page DCFS-7 (Volume III) 
Budget Account 101-3141 
 
The Subcommittee approved additional General Funds of $1.6 million in each 
year of the FY 2009-2011 biennium to create an enhanced foster care rate for 
sibling groups. The enhanced rate was requested by Clark County but was not 
included in the Executive Budget. The Subcommittee supported the concept of 
an enhanced foster care rate for sibling groups in which one child requires 
higher level of care services. They recommended the additional funding be 
placed in the IFC's Contingency Fund. The Division and counties will request the 
funding when they have determined a daily amount for the enhanced rate that is 
certified by the federal authorities to ensure federal Title IV-E reimbursement 
and when they are in concurrence on the projected caseload growth of the 
sibling group population. 
 
The Subcommittee supported the Governor's recommendation to transfer 
funding and oversight of children's mental health residential treatment 
placements from the Division to the counties. The Subcommittee approved 
funding recommended for caseload growth in foster care placements and 
adoption subsidies. They adjusted the amount for adoption subsidies to reflect a 
standardized method for calculating adoption subsidy growth consistent for all 
three child welfare agencies. The Subcommittee also supported funding 
recommended by the Governor for two new caseworker positions to support the 
increased number of adoptions finalized in Washoe County. 
 
The Subcommittee approved the Governor's recommendation to adjust fringe 
benefits in both Washoe and Clark Counties' budgets, including PERS 
contributions and employee health insurance benefits. Upon further review, 
these types of adjustments have not been made since the child welfare systems 
were integrated and were not requested by the counties. The full Committee 
may wish to consider disapproving the M-300 decision unit in these two 
budgets. 



Senate Committee on Finance 
May 13, 2009 
Page 32 
 
M-300 Fringe Benefit Rate Adjustment – Page DCFS-9 
 
SENATOR COFFIN: 
This is one of the areas for which the Subcommittee did not have full 
information at the time we closed. 
 
COCHAIR MATHEWS: 
Is this one of the items you referred to earlier? 
 
MR. GOODMAN: 
Yes. 
 
COCHAIR MATHEWS: 
Let us not stop here. 
 
MR. GOODMAN: 
The next budget account is Clark County Integration.  
 
HHS - Clark County Integration – Budget Page DCFS-15 (Volume III) 
Budget Account 101-3142 
 
The Subcommittee approved several items in Clark County's budget that were 
discussed in Washoe County's budget. The transfer of children's mental health 
residential treatment placements from the Division to the County was approved, 
as well as funding for caseload growth in foster care placements and adoption 
subsidies, with subsidy amounts adjusted for the new standardized method for 
calculating growth. Funding for ten new positions was approved in 
FY 2010-2011 to support caseload growth in foster care placements. 
Approximately $3.8 million in FY 2009-2010 and $3.9 million in FY 2010-2011 
was approved, as recommended by the Governor, for the replacement of federal 
funding with General Funds for child welfare administrative expenses due to 
reduced federal reimbursement eligibility related to the Deficit Reduction Act. 
 
The Subcommittee approved funding for three new positions to support the 
additional claiming of Supplemental Security Income and Social Security 
Survivor benefits for all children in the County's custody. The new positions are 
projected to generate sufficient new federal funds to offset their salaries and 
related costs of the positions and offset General Funds in this budget by 
approximately $2 million per year. The Subcommittee recommended that a letter 
of intent be issued to the Division to request that regular reports be provided to 
the IFC on the receipt of the projected new federal funding. Also, Staff would 
raise the same concern over the adjustment for fringe benefits in this budget as 
it did in the Washoe County Integration budget. 
 
M-300 Fringe Benefit Rate Adjustment – Page DCFS-17 
 
The next budget account is Children, Youth and Family Administration.  
 
HHS - Children, Youth & Family Administration – Budget Page DCFS-31 

(Volume III) 
Budget Account 101-3145 
 
The Subcommittee approved the Governor's recommendation of funding for 
caseload growth in mental health residential treatment placements for children 
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who are not in the Division's custody. The Subcommittee approved the 
recommended replacement of federal funding with General Funds for mental 
health residential treatment services and child welfare administrative services 
that have become ineligible for federal reimbursement or for which 
reimbursement has decreased due to changes in federal regulations. The 
Subcommittee approved the Governor's recommendation to eliminate four 
vacant administrative positions in this budget as well as four positions funded 
by the State Infrastructure Grant, which will expire in FY 2009-2010. The 
Subcommittee also approved the replacement of General Funds with additional 
Title XX funding identified as available by the Department Director's Office. 
 
The next budget account is the Juvenile Correctional Facility.  
 
HHS - Juvenile Correctional Facility – Budget Page DCFS-43 (Volume III) 
Budget Account 101-3148 
 
The Subcommittee approved the Governor's recommendation to eliminate half 
of the beds, 48, at the Summit View Youth Correctional Center as well as 
24 group supervisor positions. The Division indicated that it has seen a 
16-percent reduction in placements to the State's Youth Correctional Facilities 
in each of the last two years and is currently maintaining each facility at the 
reduced population that the Governor recommends for the 
2009-2011 biennium. The Subcommittee approved funding for agency-specific 
inflation in this budget as well as technical adjustments recommended by Staff. 
 
The next budget account is Child Care Services.   
 
HHS - Child Care Services – Budget Page DCFS-49 (Volume III) 
Budget Account 101-3149 
 
The Subcommittee approved funding for four new positions related to the return 
of child care facility licensing responsibilities to the Division from the 
City of Las Vegas. The Executive Budget included General Funds for these 
additional expenses but a budget amendment was submitted to change the 
General Funds to Child Care Development Block Grant Funds, transferred from 
the Division of Welfare and Supportive Services, to produce a General Fund 
savings of $241,984 in FY 2009-2010 and $223,364 in FY 2010-2011. The 
Subcommittee also recommended the reduction of General Fund support in the 
2009-2011 biennium because it appears that grant and fee revenues, together 
with the budget's accumulated reserve, will be adequate to support program 
activities. 
 
The next budget account is Caliente Youth Center.  
 
HHS - Caliente Youth Center – Budget Page DCFS-55 (Volume III) 
Budget Account 101-3179 
 
The Subcommittee approved the Governor's recommendation to close 
1 residential unit for females at the Caliente Youth Center, 20 beds, and 
eliminate 10 positions. The Executive Budget recommended eliminating nine 
group supervisor positions related to this closure but the Division indicated in 
Subcommittee hearings that a total of ten positions could be eliminated. The 
Subcommittee approved the transfer of $200,000 per year in General Funds to 
the Lincoln County School District related to this closure, as recommended by 
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the Governor, and approved technical adjustments recommended by Staff. The 
Subcommittee also approved the elimination of a licensed psychologist position, 
which has historically been difficult to fill, and approved the use of the savings 
from this position for a contract for psychologist services. The Subcommittee 
also approved funding for agency-specific inflation in this budget. 
 
The next budget account is Victims of Domestic Violence.  
 
HHS - Victims of Domestic Violence – Budget Page DCFS-61 (Volume III) 
Budget Account 101-3181 
 
The Subcommittee approved the Governor's recommendation to allow interest 
earned on fees collected in this account to be transferred to this account, rather 
than being deposited to the General Fund. A Bill Draft was requested to amend 
the statute to allow this change but, since the Subcommittee approved this 
budget, the Bill Draft Request has been withdrawn. However, the language from 
the Bill Draft Request was added to A.B. 515 and it is unclear what action will 
be taken. The Committee may wish to disapprove decision unit E-325 in this 
budget to eliminate the additional revenue that would have been generated had 
this bill been passed.  
 
ASSEMBLY BILL 515: Makes various changes relating to the provision of and 

reimbursement for certain services to assist families. (BDR 57-1175) 
 
E-325 Services at Level Closest to People – Page DCFS-62 
 
The Subcommittee also approved the addition of $200,000 per year in Title XX 
funding transferred from Temporary Aid to Needy Families that was identified as 
available by the Department Director's Office. 
 
The next budget account is Rural Child Welfare.  
 
HHS - Rural Child Welfare– Budget Page DCFS-64 (Volume III) 
Budget Account 101-3229 
 
The Subcommittee approved the Governor's recommendation for funding of 
caseload growth in mental health residential treatment placements for children 
in the Division's custody. The Subcommittee also approved the replacement of 
federal funding with General Funds in this account due to certain mental health 
residential treatment services and child welfare administrative services 
becoming ineligible for federal reimbursement or for which reimbursement has 
decreased due to changes in federal regulations. The Subcommittee approved 
funding for caseload growth in foster care placements and adoption subsidies in 
this budget but additional General Funds in the amount of $29,280 in 
FY 2009-2010 and $139,183 in FY 2010-2011 were approved due to errors in 
the method used to calculate growth in adoption subsidies. 
 
Similar to Clark County's budget, the Subcommittee approved two new 
positions to increase the claiming of federal Social Security benefits for all 
children in the Division's custody. With the additional federal revenues projected 
to be generated, the Governor recommended and the Subcommittee approved 
eight new family support worker positions. The Subcommittee recommended a 
letter of intent to instruct the Division to report to the IFC prior to hiring these 
new positions to ensure that the federal revenue is being generated as 

http://www.leg.state.nv.us/Session/75th2009/Bills/AB/AB515.pdf�
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projected. The Subcommittee did not approve the Governor's recommendation 
to close the Division's Office in Hawthorne but did approve funding for 
agency-specific inflation in this budget. 
 
The next budget account is the Nevada Youth Training Center.  
 
HHS - Nevada Youth Training Center – Budget Page DCFS-84 (Volume III) 
Budget Account 101-3259 
 
The Subcommittee approved the Governor's recommendation to close one 
residential unit, 20 beds, at the Nevada Youth Training Center (NYTC) and 
eliminate ten positions. The Governor had recommended the elimination of 
five group supervisor positions with this closure but the Division testified that 
ten positions could be eliminated to maintain consistency with the closures at 
the other Youth Correctional Facilities. The Subcommittee also approved 
technical adjustments to the expenses and the funding sources associated with 
this closure. The Subcommittee did not concur with the Governor's 
recommendation to transfer funding for the high school located at the NYTC to 
the Elko County School District. The Subcommittee determined that the savings 
associated with transferring the school's operations were minimal, and the 
School District indicated that it did not support the proposed transfer. The 
rejection of this recommendation results in the restoration of General Funds in 
this budget in the amount of $922,028 in FY 2009-2010 and $930,532 in 
FY 2010-2011 but offsetting reductions and the elimination of a budget 
amendment are included in the Distributive School Account budget. The 
Subcommittee also approved the elimination of one administrative assistant 
position, as recommended by the Governor, and funding for agency-specific 
inflation increases. 
 
The next budget account is Youth Parole Services.  
 
HHS - Youth Parole Services – Budget Page DCFS-91 (Volume III) 
Budget Account 101-3263 
 
The Subcommittee approved additional General Funds of $261,472 in 
FY 2009-2010 and $331,845 in FY 2010-2011 for four additional youth parole 
counselor positions that were not included in the Executive Budget. 
Subcommittee members chose to add the positions to support the Juvenile 
Justice System and the reduced beds available at youth correctional facilities. 
The Subcommittee approved the Governor's recommendation to add one new 
position to support increased federal reporting requirements for youth in the 
State's custody. The Subcommittee also added funding for one new position to 
support the Interstate Compact on Juveniles which was added to the 
Nevada Revised Statutes by the 2003 Legislature but did not become federal 
law until 2008. The Subcommittee approved additional General Funds 
recommended by the Governor to offset reductions in Medicaid reimbursement 
for mental health placement expenses. The Subcommittee also approved 
funding for an adjustment to the Department of Public Safety's radio dispatch 
cost allocation. 
 
The next budget account is Wraparound in Nevada.  
 
HHS - Wraparound in Nevada – Budget Page DCFS-98 (Volume III) 
Budget Account 101-3278 



Senate Committee on Finance 
May 13, 2009 
Page 36 
 
 
The Subcommittee approved all items in this budget as recommended by the 
Governor with the exception of the FMAP related savings which were increased 
due to the provisions of the ARRA. The Subcommittee also requested that the 
Division begin reporting on a performance indicator that reflects the functional 
assessment scores of children in the program to help measure the success of 
the program. 
 
The next budget account is Northern Nevada Child and Adolescent Services.  
 
HHS - Northern Nevada Child & Adolescent Services – Budget Page DCFS-103 
 (Volume III) 
Budget Account 101-3281 
 
The Subcommittee approved the elimination of two part-time positions that 
were approved by the 2007 Legislature to implement a new therapeutic day 
treatment classroom for children. The program was not implemented due to 
budget reductions. 
 
The next budget account is Southern Nevada Child and Adolescent Services.  
 
HHS - Southern Nevada Child & Adolescent Services – Budget Page DCFS-110 
 (Volume III) 
Budget Account 101-3646 
 
The Subcommittee approved, with adjustments, the transfer of one registered 
dietician position and the contract for food service at the Desert Willow 
Treatment Center (DWTC) from the Division of Mental Health and 
Developmental Services. Five positions were approved for elimination related to 
a unit for co-occurring disorders at the DWTC that was approved by the 
2007 Legislature but was not implemented due to budget reductions. The 
Subcommittee approved the Governor's recommendation to convert contract 
janitorial services at the Division's West Charleston campus to three part-time 
State positions. The reclassification of two positions and combination of two 
part-time positions into one full-time position was also approved, as well as 
funding for agency-specific inflation. 
 
The following budgets were closed by the Subcommittee largely as 
recommended by the Governor, with some technical adjustments by Staff. 
 
HHS - UNITY/SACWIS – Budget Page DCFS-24 (Volume III) 
Budget Account 101-3143 
 
HHS - Youth Alternative Placement – Budget Page DCFS-41 (Volume III) 
Budget Account 101-3147 
 
HHS - Review of Death of Children – Budget Page DCFS-82 (Volume III) 
Budget Account 101-3251 
 
HHS - Child Welfare Trust – Budget Page DCFS-77 (Volume III) 
Budget Account 645-3242 
 
HHS - Transition from Foster Care – Budget Page DCFS-79 (Volume III) 
Budget Account 606-3250 
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The two issues that have changed since the Subcommittee closed these 
budgets are the Washoe County and Clark County Integration budgets and the 
interest earned on Victims of Domestic Violence funds. Decision unit M-300 is 
standard throughout the State budgets for adjusting fringe benefits for 
employees. These adjustments for fringe benefits have not historically been 
made to the Clark and Washoe County budgets because these are actually 
County employees. In discussions with the Budget Office and the Division it 
was determined it was not in the best interest of the Legislature to impose the 
State's fringe benefit rates on the Counties. Rather than reductions to the 
M-300 decision units, Staff recommends their elimination as there were errors in 
the calculations. Regarding the interest earned on B/A 101-3181, Victims of 
Domestic Violence, the Assembly Committee on Ways and Means closed this 
budget by removing this funding. Staff recommends this Committee do the 
same and the Division can act later if A.B. 515 passes. 
 
 SENATOR COFFIN MOVED TO ACCEPT THE SUBCOMMITTEE REPORT 

WITH THE EXCEPTION OF DECISION UNIT M-300 IN B/A 101-3141 AND 
DECISION UNIT M-300 IN B/A 101-3142 AND TO REMOVE THE 
INTEREST FUNDING FOR B/A 101-3181. 

 
 SENATOR RAGGIO SECONDED THE MOTION. 
 
SENATOR COFFIN: 
I want to thank Staff for their assistance with these difficult budgets. The 
Subcommittee worked to increase funding for critical services in a justifiable and 
fair manner. We could not have done it without Fiscal Staff being prepared and 
flexible. 
 
 THE MOTION CARRIED. (SENATORS HORSFORD AND RHOADS WERE 

ABSENT FOR THE VOTE.) 
 

***** 
 
COCHAIR MATHEWS: 
We will now move to the Joint Committee on Public Safety, Natural Resources 
and Transportation Closing Report: Department of Public Safety. 
 
MARK KRMPOTIC (Senior Program Analyst, Fiscal Analysis Division, Legislative 

Counsel Bureau): 
The first budget account is the Director's Office.  
 
DPS - Director's Office – Budget Page PUBLIC SAFETY-1 (Volume III) 
Budget Account 201-4706 
 
The Subcommittee supported the Governor's recommended budget with the 
elimination of funding for honor guard training in FY 2010-2011 and technical 
adjustments. 
 
The next budget account is the Office of Professional Responsibility.  
 
DPS - Office of Prof Responsibility – Budget Page PUBLIC SAFETY-7 

(Volume III) 
Budget Account 201-4707 
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The Subcommittee concurred with the Governor's recommended budget, with 
technical adjustments to allow the Office of Professional Responsibility to 
remain at leased space. 
 
The next budget account is Administrative Services.  
 
DPS - Administrative Services – Budget Page PUBLIC SAFETY-11 (Volume III) 
Budget Account 201-4714 
 
The Subcommittee supported the Governor's recommendation to eliminate an 
accounting assistant position responsible for scanning fiscal documents into a 
database and other technical adjustments. 
 
SCOTT EDWARDS (Program Analyst, Fiscal Analysis Division, Legislative Counsel 

Bureau): 
The next budget account is Capitol Police.  
 
DPS - Capitol Police – Budget Page PUBLIC SAFETY-18 (Volume III) 
Budget Account 710-4727 
 
The Subcommittee approved the Governor's recommendations for this account, 
including the elimination of two Department of Public Safety (DPS) officers, 
with one officer, considered to be a relief position, assigned to the 
Grant Sawyer State Office Building in Las Vegas and the other, the second 
day-shift officer, assigned to the Supreme Court Building in Carson City, as well 
as technical adjustments. 
 
The next budget account is Forfeitures – Law Enforcement.  
 
DPS - Forfeitures - Law Enforcement – Budget Page PUBLIC SAFETY-39  
 (Volume III) 
Budget Account 101-4703 
 
The Subcommittee approved forfeiture funds in this account in the amount of 
$114,328 in FY 2009-2010 and $213,437 in FY 2010-2011 related to the 
Governor's restoration of 14 parole and probation officers, as well as an 
additional 13 officers approved by the Subcommittee to maintain 
Legislature-approved offender-to-officer supervision ratios. The Subcommittee 
did not approve a budget amendment recommending $88,330 in forfeitures to 
fund specialty equipment associated with ten officers proposed for the fugitive 
apprehension unit, since the officers are to be funded in FY 2010-2011 with 
federal grants provided under the ARRA. The Subcommittee indicated that the 
Department may approach the IFC to add the positions and related nonpersonnel 
equipment via forfeitures, if federal funds are awarded. 
 
The next budget account is the Emergency Management Division.  
 
DPS - Emergency Management Division – Budget Page PUBLIC SAFETY-44 
 (Volume III) 
Budget Account 101-3673 
 
The Subcommittee did not approve the Governor's recommendation to 
consolidate the Division of Emergency Management's operating account with its 
pass-through grants account, emergency management assistance grants. 
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The Subcommittee did not approve the Governor's recommendation to eliminate 
one communications systems specialist, due to the availability of federal funds 
to support this position. The Subcommittee approved technical adjustments to 
change the funding for this position from General Funds to Department of 
Energy Agreement in Principle Grant funds which will sustain the position 
through the 2009-2011 biennium. 
 
The Subcommittee approved the addition of one new grants and projects 
analyst III position not recommended by the Governor, which is federally funded 
via the Homeland Security Grant program and was approved by the IFC on 
April 20, 2009, to address resource management, including Mutual Aid 
Agreements and Incident Management, before, during and after emergency 
events. In addition to these duties, this position will absorb functions associated 
with the Department of Forestry's Mutual Aid Coordinator, which was 
eliminated for the 2009-2011 biennium. 
 
The next budget account is Emergency Management Assistance Grants.  
 
DPS - Emergency Management Assistance Grants – Budget Page PUBLIC  
 SAFETY-62  (Volume III) 
Budget Account 101-3674 
 
The Subcommittee did not approve the Governor's recommendation to 
consolidate the Division of Emergency Management's operating account with its 
pass-through grants account, Emergency Management Assistance Grants. 
 
The next budget account is the Fire Marshal. 
 
DPS - Fire Marshal – Budget Page PUBLIC SAFETY-70 (Volume III) 
Budget Account 101-3816 
 
The Subcommittee approved the Governor's recommendations to eliminate six 
positions in this account. The positions included one professional engineer 
supervisor, two plans examiners, two fire and life safety/hazardous materials 
inspectors, and one DPS officer that have been held vacant due to a decline in 
authorized revenues, as well as workloads due to the economic downturn. The 
Subcommittee did approve the Governor's recommendation included in this 
decision unit to provide $100,000 in contract plan review services in order to 
address increased workloads associated with economic recovery or seasonal 
fluctuations, with technical adjustments to separate this funding within a special 
category for fiscal integrity and monitoring purposes. 
 
The Subcommittee approved the Governor's recommendation to eliminate one 
education and information officer, vacant since September 2008, and one 
administrative assistant that has been vacant since February 2009. 
 
The Subcommittee did not approve the Governor's recommendation to 
consolidate expenditure categories via decision unit E-253 in order to maintain 
transparency and encourage fiscal oversight, but all other items were approved 
as recommended by Staff, with technical adjustments. 
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E-253 Working Environment and Wage – Page PUBLIC SAFETY-74 
 
The next budget account is Nevada Highway Patrol (NHP) K-9.  
 
DPS – NHP K-9 Program – Budget Page PUBLIC SAFETY-81 (Volume III) 
Budget Account 201-4705 
 
The Subcommittee approved closing this account as recommended by the 
Governor, with technical adjustments to expand the use of expenditure 
categories to increase fiscal integrity and promote oversight for this program. In 
addition, the Subcommittee approved a letter of intent for this program to report 
to the IFC on its use of overtime, accrued compensation time, and general 
performance in identifying and seizing illicit drugs transported through Nevada. 
 
The next budget account is the Highway Patrol.  
 
DPS - Highway Patrol – Budget Page PUBLIC SAFETY-83 (Volume III) 
Budget Account 201-4713 
 
The Subcommittee approved closing this account as recommended by the 
Governor, with technical adjustments as recommended by Staff. In addition, the 
Subcommittee directed that language be included in the Appropriations Act in 
order to provide the Agency with authority to expend one-shot funding over the 
2009-2011 biennium. 
 
The next budget account is the Highway Safety Grants Account.  
 
DPS - Highway Safety Grants Account – Budget Page PUBLIC SAFETY-93  
 (Volume III) 
Budget Account 201-4721 
 
The Subcommittee approved the Governor's recommendation to add one new 
administrative assistant for the northern commercial unit using federal funds, in 
order to provide consistent administrative support benefiting other units and 
allowing existing law enforcement staff to spend greater time supervising their 
law enforcement personnel rather than completing data entry. The 
Subcommittee did not approve the Governor's recommendation to add two 
commercial vehicle safety inspectors, as the Agency reported that federal 
funding was not awarded for this purpose. 
 
MR. KRMPOTIC: 
The next budget account is for Dignitary Protection.  
 
DPS - Dignitary Protection – Budget Page PUBLIC SAFETY-101 (Volume III) 
Budget Account 101-4738 
 
The Subcommittee supported the Governor's recommendation to eliminate one 
DPS officer position from the dignitary protection detail, with minor technical 
adjustments. 
 
MR. EDWARDS: 
The next budget account is the Division of Investigations.  
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DPS - Division of Investigations – Budget Page PUBLIC SAFETY-108 (Volume III) 
Budget Account 101-3743 
 
The Subcommittee did not approve the Governor's recommendation to 
consolidate the Narcotics Control Account with the Division of Investigations, in 
order to ensure that funds approved by the Legislature were strictly used by the 
Agency for the operation of Narcotics Task Forces. The Subcommittee did 
approve the Governor's recommendation to eliminate six officers from this 
account in order to achieve General Fund reductions of approximately 
$1.1 million over the biennium. The Subcommittee did not approve adding 
federal funds to restore the positions for the 2009-2011 biennium via a budget 
amendment, but directed the Agency to approach the IFC during the biennium 
to add back officers if federal funding is awarded under the ARRA. 
 
The Subcommittee approved the Governor's recommendation to transfer one 
unclassified intelligence analyst and rent expenses from the Office of Homeland 
Security, as well as the position's subsequent downgrade to a management 
analyst I. 
 
The next budget account is for Narcotics Control.  
 
DPS - Narcotics Control – Budget Page PUBLIC SAFETY-129 (Volume III) 
Budget Account 101-3744 
 
The Subcommittee approved the Governor's recommendation to eliminate three 
officers, in order to achieve General Fund reductions of approximately $544,000 
over the biennium. The Subcommittee did not approve adding federal funds to 
restore the positions for the 2009-2011 biennium via a budget amendment, but 
directed the Agency to approach the IFC during the biennium to add back 
officers if federal funding is awarded under the ARRA. 
 
The next budget account is for Parole and Probation.  
 
DPS - Parole and Probation – Budget Page PUBLIC SAFETY-146 (Volume III) 
Budget Account 101-3740 
 
The Subcommittee approved the Governor's recommendation to eliminate 
81 positions and restore 14 officers for offender supervision, totaling General 
Fund reductions of approximately $8 million over the biennium. The 
Subcommittee also approved an additional 13 officers over the biennium in 
order to maintain Legislature-approved offender-to-officer supervision ratios 
based upon the most recently projected caseload requirements. The 
Subcommittee approved the addition of $587,044 in FY 2010-2011 to restore 
the caseload-driven officers, which was partially offset by General Fund 
reductions in each year of the biennium due to approval of a budget amendment 
to correct General Fund requirements associated with the position adjustments 
recommended by the Governor in each year. Certain nonpersonnel expenses and 
specialty equipment for these officers were approved to be funded with 
transfers from the forfeitures account in the amount of $114,328 in 
FY 2009-2010 and $213,437 in FY 2010-2011. 
 
The Subcommittee did not approve the addition of ten officers via a budget 
amendment, which would have expanded the parole and probation fugitive 
apprehension unit, using federal funds provided through the ARRA. Due to the 
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uncertainty of the funding source, as well as the recommendation to add these 
positions in FY 2010-2011, the Subcommittee directed the Agency to approach 
the IFC in order to add positions for this purpose, should funding be awarded. 
The Subcommittee approved the Governor's recommendation to relocate the 
Agency's Reno office from downtown Reno in FY 2009-2010 due to the 
termination of the existing lease. In addition to technical adjustments, the 
Subcommittee approved language to be added to the Appropriations Act in 
order to allow the Agency to balance forward one-shot funding for this purpose, 
should the relocation become delayed beyond the first year of the biennium. 
 
The next budget account is the Parole Board.  
 
DPS - Parole Board – Budget Page PUBLIC SAFETY-158 (Volume III) 
Budget Account 101-3800 
 
The Subcommittee approved the Governor's recommendation to provide 
$25,000 in FY 2009-2010 for the Agency to conduct a review of its standards 
and to have the Parole Board's Risk Assessment instrument validated pursuant 
to statute. The Subcommittee did not approve $24,000 to reprogram the 
Nevada Offender Information Tracking System, as a budget amendment was 
also recommended to complete identical programming revisions, which included 
updated costs associated with the programming services. Due to the proposed 
increase included in the budget amendment, the Agency prioritized the 
programming changes, and the Subcommittee approved the revisions identified 
by the Agency to be critical to its operations, with a total increase in 
General Funds of $40,800 in FY 2009-2010 and $6,120 in FY 2010-2011. The 
Subcommittee also approved a second budget amendment for the Parole Board 
Account, in order to correct salary levels related to five employees hired after 
the payroll information was finalized for the Executive Budget. All other items 
were approved by the Subcommittee with technical adjustments. 
 
MR. KRMPOTIC: 
The next budget account is the Criminal History Repository.  
 
DPS - Criminal History Repository – Budget Page PUBLIC SAFETY-164 

(Volume III) 
Budget Account 101-4709 
 
The Subcommittee received revised projections for major sources of revenue 
received by the Criminal History Repository, including civil applicant fingerprint 
fees, point-of-sale firearms fees and civil name check fees, which indicate 
declining revenue in each fiscal year based on lower activity levels. The decline 
in revenue results in a decrease in the projected reserve below the level 
necessary to meet operating cash-flow requirements. In response to declining 
revenue, the Subcommittee supported the elimination of two fingerprint 
technicians, as proposed by the Agency to maintain the reserve at a level that 
will allow the Agency to meet its operating requirements. The Agency indicated 
to the Subcommittee that it can meet its level of service without these 
positions. 
 
The next budget account is the Technology Division.  
 
DPS - Technology Division – Budget Page PUBLIC SAFETY-174 (Volume III) 
Budget Account 201-4733 



Senate Committee on Finance 
May 13, 2009 
Page 43 
 
The Subcommittee concurred with the Governor's recommendation to eliminate 
three IT professionals, with technical adjustments. 
The next budget account is the Training Division.  
 
DPS - Training Division – Budget Page PUBLIC SAFETY-211 (Volume III) 
Budget Account 101-3755 
 
The Governor recommended the consolidation of the Peace Officers Standards 
and Training (P.O.S.T.) Commission with the DPS Training Division to 
reestablish the consolidated training function under the Department of Public 
Safety. The Governor's recommendation included the elimination of one 
lieutenant position from the Training Division based on the duplication of 
positions resulting from the consolidation. The Subcommittee did not support 
the Governor's recommendation to consolidate the P.O.S.T. with the Training 
Division, based on concerns over the ability of the DPS to meet the training 
needs of rural law enforcement agencies and to meet the current statutory 
requirements of the P.O.S.T. Commission, if combined. The recommendation by 
the Subcommittee resulted in the addition of General Funds of $34,450 in 
FY 2009-2010 and $35,704 in FY 2010-2011, and Highway Funds of 
$109,215 in FY 2009-2010 and $111,878 in FY 2010-2011, based on the 
restoration of the lieutenant and the elimination of a cost allocation 
recommended for the combined training function. 
 
The Subcommittee supported the Governor's recommendation to eliminate the 
Southern Training Academy, including the elimination of one DPS officer and 
one administrative assistant. The Subcommittee recommended a letter of intent 
to have the Agency report on its ability to meet its basic academy training 
requirements with the closure of the Southern Training Academy. 
 
The following budgets were closed by the Subcommittee largely as 
recommended by the Governor, with some technical adjustments as 
recommended by Fiscal Staff: 
 
DPS - Justice Assistance Act – Budget Page PUBLIC SAFETY-26 (Volume III) 
Budget Account 101-4708 
 
DPS - Child Volunteer Background Checks Trust Acct – Budget Page PUBLIC 
 SAFETY-173 (Volume III) 
Budget Account 101-4710 
 
DPS – Justice Assist Grant Trust – Budget Page PUBLIC SAFETY-29 

(Volume III) 
Budget Account 101-4734 
 
DPS - Justice Grant – Budget Page PUBLIC SAFETY-31 (Volume III) 
Budget Account 101-4736 
 
DPS – Home Disaster Assistance Program – Budget Page PUBLIC SAFETY-42 
 (Volume III) 
Budget Account 101-3672 
 
DPS - State Emergency Response Commission – Budget Page PUBLIC 

SAFETY-180  (Volume III) 
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Budget Account 201-4729 
 
DPS - Traffic Safety – Budget Page PUBLIC SAFETY-188 (Volume III) 
Budget Account 101-4687 
 
DPS – Highway Safety Plan & Admin – Budget Page PUBLIC SAFETY-190 
 (Volume III) 
Budget Account 101-4688 
 
DPS - Bicycle Safety Program – Budget Page PUBLIC SAFETY-198 (Volume III) 
Budget Account 201-4689 
 
DPS - Motorcycle Safety Program – Budget Page PUBLIC SAFETY-204 

(Volume III) 
Budget Account 201-4691 
 
COCHAIR MATHEWS: 
Are there any questions from the Committee? 
 
 SENATOR WOODHOUSE MOVED TO ACCEPT THE CLOSING REPORT 

FROM THE SUBCOMMITTEE ON THE DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY. 
 
 SENATOR COFFIN SECONDED THE MOTION. 
 
SENATOR COFFIN: 
As a member of the Subcommittee, I failed to keep or add back some positions 
in some areas, particularly the rural areas. The loss of these officers will haunt 
us later as it impedes our ability to fight narcotics cultivation in the rural areas. I 
reluctantly support this recommendation, but I believe it is a shortsighted focus 
which makes little or no sense. 
 
COCHAIR MATHEWS: 
We have that on the record. There are many issues in these budgets we do not 
agree with. 
 
 THE MOTION CARRIED. (SENATORS HORSFORD AND RHOADS WERE 

ABSENT FOR THE VOTE.) 
 

***** 
 
COCHAIR MATHEWS: 
We will now move to the Joint Committee on General Government and 
Accountability Closing Report for the Department of Business and Industry. 
 
MS. COFFMAN: 
The Joint Subcommittee on General Government has reviewed the budgets for 
the Department of Business and Industry for the 2009-2011 biennium. The 
following Subcommittee recommendations result in General Fund savings of 
$76,810 in FY 2009-2010 and a General Fund increase of $426,185 in 
FY 2010-2011, compared to the Governor's recommendation. 
 
The first budget account is the Director's Office.  
 
COMMERCE AND INDUSTRY 
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BUSINESS AND INDUSTRY 
B&I-Business and Industry Administration – Budget Page B&I-1 (Volume II) 
Budget Account 101-4681 
 
The Subcommittee concurred with the Governor's recommendation to transfer 
an additional $115,000 each year from the Industrial Development Revenue 
Bond (IDRB) account to the Director's Office in order to supplement the 
Department's cost allocation. 
 
HEIDI SAKALERIOS (Program Analyst, Fiscal Analysis Division, Legislative Counsel 

Bureau): 
The next budget account is Insurance Regulation.  
 
B&I-Insurance Regulation – Budget Page B&I-8 (Volume II) 
Budget Account 101-3813 
 
The Subcommittee approved the Governor's recommendation to establish a new 
administration fee for the Insurance Regulation account and to reduce the 
General Fund appropriation in this account to $100 in each year of the 
2009-2011 biennium. The administration fee will be charged to all new 
licensees and all renewing licensees, beginning on July 1, 2009. Insurance 
producers will pay an administration fee of $60, captive insurers will pay $250, 
and insurance carriers will pay $1,300. Additionally, insurance carriers will pay 
a prorated fee of $650 for calendar year 2009 which will be paid in 
October 2009. The Subcommittee also voted to approve the Division's revised 
cost allocation methodology which is based on the projected time and effort 
each employee in the Insurance Regulation account spends working on activities 
in the Division's other seven accounts. 
 
The Subcommittee voted to issue a letter of intent requiring the Division of 
Insurance to report to the IFC on a quarterly basis, beginning in October 2009, 
on the number of insurers renewing licenses monthly and the number of new 
insurers applying for licensure each month. 
 
As a result of the elimination of General Funds in this account and the prorated 
administration fee revenue charged to insurance carriers beginning in 
October 2009, the Division will experience a cash flow problem during the first 
part of FY 2009-2010. The Subcommittee voted to authorize the Division to 
receive a General Fund advance for FY 2009-2010. The advance must be repaid 
before the end of FY 2009-2010. 
 
The Subcommittee voted to approve the Governor's recommendation to restore 
4.49 positions with administration fee revenue. The Subcommittee also 
approved 10 of the 14 new positions recommended by the Governor necessary 
to meet the current workload of the Division, eliminate backlog and to ensure 
compliance with accreditation and statutory requirements for the Division. 
 
The State's accreditation by the National Association of Insurance 
Commissioners (NAIC) was suspended in September 2008. The Division 
expects the State's accreditation will be restored during the NAIC's June 2009 
meeting. The Subcommittee voted to require the Division to provide a status 
report on the State's accreditation at the first IFC meeting following the NAIC's 
June 2009 meeting. 
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The next budget account is Self-Insured Workers' Compensation.  
 
B&I-Self Insured - Workers Compensation – Budget Page B&I-49 (Volume II) 
Budget Account 210-4684 
 
Although the Subcommittee voted to close this account as recommended by the 
Governor, with only technical adjustments recommended by Staff, the 
Subcommittee also voted to issue a letter of intent requiring the Division to 
report to the IFC on the Division's total annual costs for administering the 
Self-Insured Workers' Compensation program and how these expenditures 
should be cost allocated between this account and the Insurance Regulation 
account. Because the Self-Insured Workers' Compensation account is included 
in the Division's cost allocation plan, funds are transferred from this account to 
the Insurance Regulation account. Additionally, the Division of Industrial 
Relations transfers funding directly to the Insurance Regulation account for the 
administrative costs associated with the Self-Insured Workers' Compensation. 
As a result, there is concern that the Division of Industrial Relations may be 
paying more than its appropriate share of the administrative costs in the 
Insurance Regulation account. 
 
JEFFREY A. FERGUSON (Program Analyst, Fiscal Analysis Division, Legislative 

Counsel Bureau): 
The next budget account is Transportation Authority.  
 
B&I-Transportation Authority – Budget Page B&I-57 (Volume II) 
Budget Account 226-3922 
 
The Subcommittee voted to delay the elimination of a compliance enforcement 
investigator II position until the second year of the 2009-2011 biennium, 
resulting in additional Highway Fund costs of $68,795 in FY 2009-2010. The 
Governor recommended elimination of this position in both years of the 
biennium, reducing the total number of investigators from five to four. However, 
the Governor's recommendation would leave the Agency with three 
investigators in FY 2009-2010; another investigator will be absent for 
approximately one year due to a recent deployment to Iraq with the National 
Guard. The Subcommittee's recommendation would leave the Agency with four 
investigators in each year of the 2009-2011 biennium. 
 
JULIE WALLER (Program Analyst, Fiscal Analysis Division, Legislative Counsel 

Bureau): 
The next budget account is the Manufactured Housing Division.  
 
B&I-Manufactured Housing – Budget Page B&I-67 (Volume II) 
Budget Account 271-3814 
 
The Governor recommended merging the Manufactured Housing Division with 
the Nevada Housing Division. The merger would result in the elimination of two 
nonGeneral Fund positions within the Manufactured Housing Division, for a 
budget savings of $164,319 in FY 2009-2010 and $165,209 in FY 2010-2011. 
The Senate concurred with the Governor's recommendation to merge the 
Divisions, while the Assembly did not. The Assembly closed the budget without 
the merger and voted to restore the two positions that would have been 
eliminated if the merger had gone forward. 
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Additionally, the Subcommittee denied the Governor's recommendation to 
replace one vehicle in FY 2009-2010 and two vehicles in FY 2010-2011, based 
on the low mileage of the vehicles to be replaced. The Subcommittee also 
reduced recommended funding to contract for the conversion of microfiche 
images of title documents from $72,320 to $57,320 in FY 2009-2010. 
 
The next budget account is for Consumer Affairs.  
 
B&I-Consumer Affairs – Budget Page B&I-96 (Volume II) 
Budget Account 101-3811 
 
The Subcommittee did not approve the continuation of the registration of the 
sellers of travel industry during the 2009-2011 biennium. The Governor's 
recommendation to eliminate the Consumer Affairs Recovery Fund (B/A 3807) 
and transfer the estimated ending cash balance of $25,120 to the General Fund 
in FY 2009-2010 was approved by the Subcommittee. 
 
The Subcommittee approved the recommendation in the Executive Budget to 
eliminate the Consumer Affairs Division (CAD) for the 2009-2011 biennium, 
resulting in the elimination of 18 positions, including 8 to 10 layoffs. The 
Ombudsman of Consumer Affairs for Minorities is also scheduled to sunset on 
June 30, 2009, bringing the position reduction total to 19.  
 
Subsequent to this document being prepared, we have received information that 
A.B. 254, restoring the Ombudsman of Consumer Affairs for Minorities, has 
been approved effective July 1, 2009. This bill does not contain the sunset 
provision. The Subcommittee did not have that information when they approved 
this budget. It will be a consideration for the full Committee. 
 
ASSEMBLY BILL 254: Makes the Ombudsman of Consumer Affairs for 

Minorities a permanent position within the Office of the Director of the 
Department of Business and Industry. (BDR 18-830) 

 
The projected timeline for closure of the Agency is June 30, 2009. However, 
the Subcommittee voted to retain two positions, an accounting assistant and an 
administrative assistant III, to answer consumer calls and assist in redirecting 
consumer complaints received by the Division. These two positions will be 
located in the southern Nevada Business and Industry's Director's Office. 
 
These two positions' costs and terminal leave and related payouts will be 
funded in the amount of $296,383 from the $527,944 recommended by the 
Governor for the Consumer Affairs' budget in FY 2009-2010 and a 
General Fund addback of $115,027 in FY 2010-2011. The Joint Subcommittee 
recommended that a letter of intent be issued directing the Division to report to 
the IFC at the end of FY 2009-2010 regarding the call volume to justify whether 
the continuation of two positions for FY 2010-2011 will be warranted. 
 
Subsequent to the Subcommittee closing, Staff was informed by the Division 
that the existing accounting assistant in CAD accepted a promotion in another 
Division in the Department. Therefore, the Committee may wish to amend the 
Subcommittee's recommendation to instead restore an administrative 
assistant II position, at an estimated General Fund savings of $7,802 in 
FY 2009-2010 and $10,994 in FY 2010-2011. 
 

http://www.leg.state.nv.us/Session/75th2009/Bills/AB/AB254.pdf�
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The costs related to the Ombudsman of Consumer Affairs for Minorities position 
are estimated at approximately $100,000 each fiscal year. Staff requests 
authority to adjust those costs based on the actual costs for this position. 
 
The Governor's budget further recommended, and the Subcommittee approved, 
the transfer of the Investigations of Auto Repair and Sales Complaints function, 
along with one position, from the Consumer Affairs Division to the Department 
of Motor Vehicles (DMV). Budget Amendment No. 113 was approved to 
transfer one compliance investigator position from Consumer Affairs to the DMV 
in order to continue deceptive trade practice investigations related to the repair 
of motor vehicles by garagemen or auto body shops. The position and related 
costs totaling $76,953 in FY 2009-2010 and $77,742 in FY 2010-2011 are 
recommended to be funded in the DMV by Highway Fund authorization. The 
Joint Subcommittee on Public Safety, Natural Resources and Transportation 
also approved Budget Amendment No. 113 on May 1, 2009. 
 
SENATOR COFFIN: 
I did not realize the Consumer Affairs Division had been eliminated. What 
happens to the consumer protection function? 
 
MS. WALLER: 
Some functions were transferred. For example, the Credit Service Organization 
registration function will be transferred to the Mortgage Lending Division. The 
responsibility for the investigation of auto repair shops will be transferred to the 
DMV. In addition, the consumer affairs commissioner position will be transferred 
to a vacant deputy director position in the Department of Business and Industry. 
Therefore, the commissioner can assume this position and oversee and redirect 
consumer complaints that will be received during this biennium. The 
Subcommittee's motion was to suspend the Division for the biennium: the 
budget account will remain in the Executive Budget with these two positions in 
the event the Governor or the Legislature would like to restore this agency in 
the next Legislative Session. 
 
SENATOR COFFIN: 
Is there an attachment that indicates where all of the positions and functions of 
this Division have been shifted? I did not know this had happened. 
 
MS. WALLER: 
The discussion of the issues before the Subcommittee begins on page 53 of 
your packet. 
 
SENATOR COFFIN: 
I do not see a chart that shows the elimination and spread of positions to other 
Divisions. How many people are left from the original Consumer Affairs 
Division? 
 
MS. WALLER: 
The Division originally had 18 positions plus an additional Ombudsman 
scheduled to sunset at the end of this biennium. Of those 18 positions, 
approximately 8 to 10 remain in the Division; only 1 position has been 
transferred. The remaining positions will be eliminated. Some functions of the 
Division will be transferred. The Subcommittee voted to retain an accounting 
assistant and an administrative assistant position in the Consumer Affairs 
budget to respond to consumer complaints and redirect those phone calls for 
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this biennium. The Consumer Affairs Commissioner will migrate to the Director's 
Office and assume the responsibilities of the Deputy Director while assisting in 
the closure of this Division. 
 
MR. FERGUSON: 
The next budget account is the Real Estate Administration.  
 
B&I-Real Estate Administration – Budget Page B&I-111 (Volume II) 
Budget Account 101-3823 
 
The Subcommittee approved the Governor's recommendation to eliminate three 
vacant administrative assistant positions from the Real Estate Division's 
licensing section, two in Las Vegas and one in Carson City, providing a General 
Fund savings of $232,222 over the 2009-2011 biennium. The loss of these 
three vacant positions will not adversely impact the Division because there has 
been a decrease in licensing activity due to the national economic downturn. 
The Subcommittee also approved the Governor's recommendation to eliminate 
one vacant program officer I position from the Projects Program, providing a 
General Fund savings of $94,945 over the 2009-2011 biennium. The duties of 
this position have been redistributed to existing staff. 
 
The Subcommittee approved the Real Estate Administration budget with 
adjustments to align the Division's latest real estate license testing fee revenue 
and expenditure projections with the amounts contained in the 
Executive Budget. These adjustments reduce the Division's transfers to the 
General Fund by $231,803 over the 2009-2011 biennium. The Subcommittee 
also approved the Governor's recommendation to provide General Funds of 
$6,147 in each year of the 2009-2011 biennium to cover the Division's costs 
associated with implementing a pilot program to allow the Agency to accept 
credit cards as a form of payment and charge a "convenience fee" to recoup the 
costs levied by credit card companies. This pilot program requires the passage 
of A.B. 548 which was requested by the Department of Administration. The 
Subcommittee has authorized staff to remove the General Fund appropriation for 
the credit card system if A.B. 548 is not passed by the 2009 Legislature. 
 
ASSEMBLY BILL 548: Revises the provisions governing the fees charged by 

certain governmental entities for accepting payments by credit cards, 
debit cards and electronic transfers of money. (BDR 31-1178) 

 
The next budget account is the Common Interest Communities.  
 
B&I-Common Interest Communities – Budget Page B&I-128 (Volume II) 
Budget Account 101-3820 
 
The Subcommittee approved the Governor's recommendation to add one new 
auditor II position for the Common Interest Communities account, funded with 
fee revenue and reserve reductions. This new position will focus on researching 
and identifying nonpaying associations, and perform financial audits for 
investigations. The Subcommittee requested that the Agency report to the IFC 
semi-annually each fiscal year during the 2009-2011 biennium concerning the 
performance indicators related to this new position. 
 
MS. COFFMAN: 
The next budget account is the Financial Institutions Investigations.  

http://www.leg.state.nv.us/Session/75th2009/Bills/AB/AB548.pdf�
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B&I-Financial Institutions Investigations – Budget Page B&I-143 (Volume II) 
Budget Account 101-3805 
 
After reviewing the high reserve level in the Investigation account, the 
Subcommittee recommends transferring reserve funding of $513,805 in 
FY 2009-2010 to the General Fund. As a result, the Agency's reserve level at 
the end of FY 2010-2011 is projected to be $305,715 which will be sufficient 
to maintain ongoing operating expenses in this account.  
 
MS. WALLER: 
The next budget account is Special Housing Assistance, Division of Housing, 
B/A 101-3839. This budget account was not included in the Executive Budget. 
The Subcommittee approved Staff's recommendation to include budget 
account 101-3839, Special Housing Assistance, as a Legislatively-approved 
budget for the 2009-2011 biennium. 
 
MS. COFFMAN: 
The next budget is Mortgage Lending.  
 
B&I-Mortgage Lending – Budget Page B&I-172 (Volume II) 
Budget Account 101-3910 
 
The Subcommittee did not approve the Governor's recommendation to merge 
the Mortgage Lending Division with the Financial Institutions Division. As a 
result, the Mortgage Lending Commissioner and an account assistant position 
were restored. 
 
The Subcommittee also recommends restoring four vacant financial examiner 
positions, recommended for elimination by the Governor, in order to ensure the 
Agency meets its annual examination requirements, and issuing a letter of intent 
directing the Division to provide semi-annual reports which identify the 
Agency's revenue and expenditure activity with the corresponding impact to its 
operating reserve level. The Subcommittee concurred with the Governor's 
recommendation to eliminate ten other vacant positions including five financial 
examiner positions, two compliance investigator positions, and three 
administrative assistants. 
 
MS. WALLER 
The next budget account is Occupational Safety and Health Enforcement.  
 
B&I-Occupational Safety & Health Enforcement – Budget Page B&I-186  
 (Volume II) 
Budget Account 210-4682 
 
The Subcommittee voted to approve the Governor's recommendation to provide 
cell phones for the Occupational Safety and Health Administration mechanical 
unit inspectors and supervisors at an annual cost of $7,834. The Subcommittee 
also approved recommended equipment, including industrial hygiene and office 
equipment, with 57 desktop and 4 laptop computers in accordance with DoIT's 
recommended five-year replacement policy, for a total of $159,425 in 
FY 2009-2010 and $71,025 in FY 2010-2011. The Joint Subcommittee 
reduced the Governor's recommendation to replace six vehicles over the 
2009-2011 biennium to two vehicles in FY 2009-2010 and one vehicle in 
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FY 2010-2011 which resulted in a savings of workers' compensation funding of 
$45,938 in FY 2009-2010 and $71,025 in FY 2010-2011. 
 
The next budget account is Safety Consultation and Training. 
 
B&I-Safety Consultation and Training – Budget Page B&I-193 (Volume II) 
Budget Account 210-4685 
 
The Subcommittee supported the Governor's recommendation to increase the 
Agency's multi-media program funding by $25,000 each fiscal year. The Joint 
Subcommittee further approved the Governor's recommendation for the 
purchase of replacement equipment, including 9 laptop computers, 2 fax 
machines, 2 printers and 27 desktop computers, at a cost of $30,778 in 
FY 2009-2010 and $43,633 in FY 2010-2011. Additionally the Subcommittee 
postponed a recommended vehicle replacement in the amount of $23,318 from 
FY 2009-2010 to FY 2010-2011, when the vehicle is projected to exceed 
80,000 miles. 
 
The next budget account is the Athletic Commission. 
 
B&I-Athletic Commission – Budget Page B&I-220 (Volume II) 
Budget Account 101-3952 
 
The Subcommittee did not support the Governor's recommendation for a 
one-time transfer from the amateur boxing reserve to the General Fund in the 
amount of $155,865 in FY 2010-2011. The Subcommittee indicated it did not 
want to reduce funding that supports youth programs. Additionally, the 
Subcommittee suggested that the Athletic Commission expand its outreach 
efforts to improve the utilization of the Amateur Boxing Program funding. The 
Subcommittee agreed with the Governor's recommendation to reinstate General 
Fund support of $25,000 per year for the part-time physician contract which 
provides necessary medical expertise to the Commission. With the 
reinstatement of this funding, the contract total has been restored to the 
FY 2008-2009 Legislatively-approved level of $75,000 per year. The 
Subcommittee also approved the Governor's recommendation to reinstate 
General Funds in the amount of $16,492 each fiscal year for random drug and 
steroid testing. However, the approved funding was reduced by $5,400 per 
year, based on the projected number of tests and updated costs. 
 
The next budget account is the Labor Commissioner. 
 
B&I-Labor Commissioner – Budget Page B&I-226 (Volume II) 
Budget Account 101-3900 
 
The Joint Subcommittee did not agree with the Governor's recommendation to 
eliminate three positions in the Labor Commissioner's budget, but instead voted 
to restore all three positions, resulting in a General Fund addback of $121,404 
in FY 2009-2010 and $122,951 in FY 2010-2011. 
 
The next budget account is the Employee Management Relations Board. 
 
B&I-Employee Management Relations Board – Budget Page B&I-231 (Volume II) 
Budget Account 101-1374 
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The Subcommittee concurred with the Governor's recommendation to change 
the Employee Management Relations Board's funding source from General Fund 
to fee-based by assessing fees to local governmental employers, with the 
provision that the State fund the annual fee to be assessed to school districts 
and charter schools in the Distributive School Account (DSA). The initial local 
government employer assessment is estimated to be $6 per employee in 
FY 2009-2010 and $5 per employee in FY 2010-2011. The Joint Subcommittee 
on K-12 and Higher Education voted to approve State funding in the amount of 
$271,128 in FY 2009-2010 and $225,940 in FY 2010-2011 in the DSA for the 
estimated assessment to school district and charter school employer groups. 
 
MR. FERGUSON: 
The next budget account is the Taxicab Authority. 
 
B&I-Taxicab Authority – Budget Page B&I-236 (Volume II) 
Budget Account 245-4130 
 
The Subcommittee approved the Taxicab Authority budget as recommended by 
the Governor. However, the Subcommittee recommends issuing a letter of 
intent directing the Taxicab Authority to work with representatives from Aging 
Services to identify potential improvements that could be made to the 
Senior Ride program, including more effective ways to utilize funding. In 
addition, if reserves are adequate, the letter of intent directs the Agencies to 
consider increasing transfers to the Aging Services budget in support of the 
Senior Ride program to implement recommended program modifications. 
 
The following budgets were closed by the Subcommittee with technical 
adjustments and, where applicable, adjustments to the Department's revised 
Attorney General and Statewide Cost Allocation Plan: 
 
B&I-Insurance Examiners – Budget Page B&I-19 (Volume II) 
Budget Account 223-3817 
 
B&I-Captive Insurers – Budget Page B&I-23 (Volume II) 
Budget Account 101-3818 
 
B&I-Insurance Recovery – Budget Page B&I-31 (Volume II) 
Budget Account 101-3821 
 
B&I-Insurance Education & Research – Budget Page B&I-33 (Volume II) 
Budget Account 101-3824 
 
B&I-Nat. Assoc. of Insurance Commissioners – Budget Page B&I-40 (Volume II) 
Budget Account 101-3828 
 
B&I-Insurance Cost Stabilization – Budget Page B&I-43 (Volume II) 
Budget Account 101-3833 
 
B&I-Transportation Authority Admin Fines – Budget Page B&I-64 (Volume II) 
Budget Account 226-3923 
 
B&I-Mobile Home Lot Rent Subsidy – Budget Page B&I-78 (Volume II) 
Budget Account 630-3842 
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B&I-Mobile Home Parks – Budget Page B&I-84 (Volume II) 
Budget Account 271-3843 
 
B&I-Mfg Housing Education/Recovery – Budget Page B&I-91 (Volume II) 
Budget Account 271-3847 
 
B&I-Real Estate Education and Research – Budget Page B&I-119 (Volume II) 
Budget Account 216-3826 
 
B&I-Real Estate Recovery Account – Budget Page B&I-126 (Volume II) 
Budget Account 216-3827 
 
B&I-Financial Institutions – Budget Page B&I-136 (Volume II) 
Budget Account 101-3835 
 
B&I-Financial Institutions Audit – Budget Page B&I-145 (Volume II) 
Budget Account 101-3882 
 
B&I-Industrial Development Bonds – Budget Page B&I-150 (Volume II) 
Budget Account 101-4683 
 
B&I-Housing Division – Budget Page B&I-153 (Volume II) 
Budget Account 503-3841 
 
B&I-Low Income Housing Trust Fund – Budget Page B&I-161 (Volume II) 
Budget Account 101-3838 
 
B&I-Weatherization – Budget Page B&I-167 (Volume II) 
Budget Account 101-4865 
 
B&I-Industrial Relations – Budget Page B&I-179 (Volume II) 
Budget Account 210-4680 
 
B&I-Mine Safety & Training – Budget Page B&I-200 (Volume II) 
Budget Account 210-4686 
 
B&I-NV Attorney for Injured Workers – Budget Page B&I-206 (Volume II) 
Budget Account 101-1013 
 
B&I-Dairy Commission – Budget Page B&I-212 (Volume II) 
Budget Account 233-4470 
 
BRIAN M. BURKE (Principal Deputy Fiscal Analyst, Fiscal Analysis Division, 

Legislative Counsel Bureau):  
The position for the Ombudsman for Consumer Affairs for Minorities is 
scheduled to sunset. That is reflected in the Governor's budget. As Ms. Waller 
mentioned, A.B. 254 would make that position permanent. That bill currently 
resides with the Assembly Committee on Ways and Means. There is no funding 
in that bill, but the Assembly Committee on Ways and Means restored funding 
to the budget rather than adding a fiscal note to A.B. 254. That Committee 
gave Staff authority to expend up to $100,000 a year for this Ombudsman 
position. That action is not reflected in this Subcommittee report. 
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COCHAIR MATHEWS: 
How much funding was restored by the Assembly Committee? 
 
MR. BURKE: 
I believe Ms. Waller indicated it was approximately $100,000 a year. 
 
COCHAIR MATHEWS: 
Is the Assembly going to restore the funds to this budget rather than append it 
to A.B. 254? 
 
MR. BURKE: 
Yes. 
 
SENATOR RAGGIO: 
Where will the position be located? 
 
MR. BURKE: 
It is the Ombudsman for Consumer Affairs for Minorities. 
 
MS. WALLER: 
The position is located in Las Vegas. It will be housed in the Director's Office. 
 
 SENATOR WOODHOUSE MOVED TO ACCEPT THE CLOSING REPORT 

FOR THE DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND INDUSTRY; TO APPROVE 
THE ADDITIONAL FUNDING FOR THE OMBUDSMAN FOR CONSUMER 
AFFAIRS FOR MINORITIES, AND TO APPROVE BUDGET AMENDMENT 
NO. 113. 

 
 SENATOR RAGGIO SECONDED THE MOTION. 
 
SENATOR COFFIN: 
I cannot support the Subcommittee report for many reasons. It is an 
embarrassment to allow the Insurance Division, which used to be a separate 
Department, to fall into suspension of accreditation by failing to provide funds. 
Allowing the destruction of the Consumer Affairs Division is untenable. I 
understand the Assembly Committee on Ways and Means is acting to reinstate 
a Consumer Advocate for Minority Affairs. The rest of us must live with a 
scattershot approach to consumer protection. I cannot support the motion to 
approve the Subcommittee report. The reason I could not speak earlier is the 
Subcommittee system does not do us service. All members of this Committee 
should see all of the budgets, 120-day Session or not. 
 
COCHAIR MATHEWS: 
Thank you for your comments. We will ensure they are on the record. 
 
 THE MOTION CARRIED. (SENATOR COFFIN VOTED NO. SENATORS 

HARDY AND HORSFORD WERE ABSENT FOR THE VOTE.) 
 

***** 
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COCHAIR MATHEWS: 
There are other budget closings to come before this Committee, but we will 
hear them at a future meeting. This Committee is adjourned at 12:31 p.m. 
 
 

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED: 
 
 
 

  
Patricia O'Flinn, 
Committee Secretary 

 
 
APPROVED BY: 
 
 
 
  
Senator Bernice Mathews, Cochair 
 
 
DATE:  
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	Ms. Johnstone:
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	Mr. Richardson:
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	Cochair Mathews:
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	Ms. Johnstone:
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	Senator Raggio:
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	Ms. Johnstone:
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	Senator Raggio:
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	Ms. Johnstone:
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	Ms. Johnstone:
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	Ms. Johnstone:
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	Ms. Johnstone:
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	Senator Raggio:
	Some of this material has been sent to a few of the Senators, with quotes of savings of close to 60 percent.
	Ms. Johnstone:
	I assume these quotes are referring to Medicare Advantage policies. There are savings, but the assumption is that all of the population goes into that plan.
	Senator Raggio:
	Yes, it was a group Medicare Advantage plan. I will give you the information I have for you to review.
	Mr. Richardson:
	One of the reasons many state health plans have a longer vesting period is to encourage long service, which is a worthy goal. What I suggest, is that there is an unintended consequence when that is your primary goal. It discourages the hiring of succe...
	Cochair Horsford:
	Regarding the Medicare Advantage program other states have adopted, do you know how many providers in the Carson City area accept Medicare and Medicare Advantage? I have heard there have been challenges in finding a provider.
	Mr. Richardson:
	My understanding is you are correct: it is a challenge to find providers who will accept those plans. You also have to be careful about "lowballing." You get a very good bid at the beginning that skyrockets after a year or two.
	Cochair Horsford:
	I would like to get some of that information on the record. It helps us understand what the options are.
	Mr. Bibb:
	You are correct. We have not been able to find any provider in Carson City who would accept a Medicare Advantage plan. It is difficult to get providers to take Medicare assignment under Medicare Parts A and B. To our knowledge there is great resistanc...
	Cochair Horsford:
	I have two questions regarding the ten-year vesting issue. When a mid-career professional is recruited into a Nevada institution of higher learning, they come at a higher salary level, and they have the ability to pay a higher premium for health-care ...
	Mr. Richardson:
	Those are good points. The PEBP Board did a study comparing state health plans. It did not isolate the states that had separate heath plans for the University system. I interpreted the PEBP study to mean that Nevada had an average health plan in terms...
	Ronald P. Dreher (Government Affairs Director, Peace Officers Research Association):
	The "not more than" language could be zero. We share the concerns of our colleagues Mr. Bibb and Mr. Richardson. In 1979 and 1980, the City of Reno privatized its health insurance. Each year, the insurer would offer a new policy at a reduced rate for ...
	We have a better plan in place, and with assistance, it is getting better all the time. It is important to understand that insurance companies offer low rates to attract the client and that these rates can be raised. Having said that, we urge your sup...
	Danny N. Coyle (Retiree Vice President, American Federation of State, County and Municipal Employees, AFL-CIO):
	I concur with the remarks of Mr. Richardson, Mr. Bibb and Mr. Dreher. We are concerned about the reduction in the rates for retirees in fiscal year (FY) 2009-2010 and FY 2010-2011. We understood the current subsidy rates of $410.48 would be maintained...
	Cochair Mathews:
	Are there any questions from the Committee? Ms. Johnstone, can you respond to Mr. Coyle's statement?
	Ms. Johnstone:
	There are a couple of aspects that went into the calculation of this assessment. Senate Bill No. 544 of the 74th Legislative Session established a policy that Medicare retiree expenses would not be comingled with the rest of the population. That chang...
	Cochair Mathews:
	Are there any further questions from the Committee?
	Is there anyone here against this bill? Seeing none, we will close the hearing on S.B 415.
	We will open the hearing on S.B. 418.
	Gary L. Ghiggeri (Senate Fiscal Analyst, Fiscal Analysis Division, Legislative Counsel Bureau):
	This legislation was introduced by the Senate Committee on Finance in response to actions taken by the 24th Special Session of the Legislature. The $7.6 million taken from the Millennium Scholarship transfer this fiscal year was utilized by the 24th S...
	Senator Hardy:
	This issue of abandoned property has troubled me since I first came to the Legislature. At some point, we have to start looking at the abandoned property program as a means of reuniting people with their property as opposed to a revenue source. I have...
	Cochair Mathews:
	Do you have an amendment?
	Senator Hardy:
	I have a conceptual amendment. We could certainly put that forward. I do not know if there is another vehicle to which we can tie those reforms.
	Cochair Mathews:
	Would you bring that amendment to the Committee?
	Senator Hardy:
	Conceptually, the amendment would revise the presumption of the abandonment language to make it clear that a written or other recorded statement from an apparent owner of the property can be used to establish who does, or does not, own the property. I...
	Cochair Mathews:
	We need to read that. We have auditors on Staff. Why would we want to pay additional auditors?
	Senator Hardy:
	Currently, we allow third-party auditors out-of-State.
	Cochair Mathews:
	Are there any questions or comments on this bill? We will get Senator Hardy's amendment and hear the bill again in the next day or so.
	We will close the hearing on S.B. 418.
	Cochair Horsford:
	We will open the hearing on Assembly Bill (A.B.) 165.
	Assemblywoman Barbara Buckley (Assembly District No. 8):
	We know that ensuring funding for critical services is a duty we owe our constituents. Since the 74th Legislative Session, we have had to cut the approved budget twice. First, we raided our existing "Rainy Day Fund" to try to cover the budget shortfal...
	Creating programs in good times to slash them in bad times is senseless. While no one predicted the depth and severity of our current recession, our past spending habits do not allow us any margin for error during economic slumps. We must be fiscally ...
	Assembly Bill 165 requires forced savings in the amount of 1 percent of projected revenue. The Governor's Budget must reserve 1 percent of the total anticipated revenue for each fiscal year of a biennium for the Stabilization Fund. The Legislature's a...
	Present law limits the accumulation of the "Rainy Day Fund" to 15 percent of General Fund operating appropriations. Assembly Bill 165 increases the total amount that may be accumulated to 20 percent. Money from the Stabilization Fund can be appropriat...
	The new Stabilization Fund by itself will not save the State from all budgetary shortfalls. It starts us on the road to fiscal responsibility and reduces the severity of cuts needed when the economy worsens.
	Senator Hardy:
	The Legislature is like a family who balances its checkbook at the end of the month and realizes they have an extra $300 in their account. Instead of going out for dinner, they use the money as a down payment on a new minivan. The "Rainy Day Funds" ar...
	Senator Coffin:
	I, too, believe this legislation is long overdue. I am concerned we still have not addressed the issue of a stable tax source. This legislation assumes we do not have an additional stable tax source to help balance the peaks and valleys of the revenue...
	Assemblywoman Buckley:
	This fund will work with our current taxes. It will work should this Legislature adopt a more stable tax base. Currently, more than 60 percent of our revenue comes from sales and gaming taxes. Other taxes are also volatile when times are bad. Regardle...
	Cochair Horsford:
	How does the Stabilization Fund address shortfall from local property taxes, Local School Support Tax or other taxes the State must supplement if inadequate?
	Assemblywoman Buckley:
	This bill, A.B. 165, only addresses General Fund appropriations. However, A.B. 458 creates an education shortfall fund. It provides mechanisms so that when property and sales taxes dip, there will be additional sources of revenue. It ensures Redevelop...
	Cochair Horsford:
	These are companion bills. Over 50 percent of the State budget funds education. Is there anyone here to testify in favor of A.B. 165?
	George A. Ross (Director, Legislative and Government Affairs, Shell & Wilmer L.L. P.):
	I am here today on behalf of the Las Vegas Chamber of Commerce. We want to go on record in support of A.B. 165.
	Mr. Dreher:
	We support A.B. 165.
	Cochair Horsford:
	Is there anyone else who wants to speak on A.B. 165? If not, we will close the hearing on A.B. 165.
	We will open the hearing on A.B. 446.
	Assemblywoman Buckley:
	Assembly Bill 446 is the other long-term planning piece measuring progress and spending tax dollars wisely. We must decide what the ultimate goals of State government should be. The Governor must articulate the core functions of State government and c...
	Assembly Bill 446 requires the establishment of benchmarks to evaluate progress toward these goals. Each agency must determine its core mission, how it relates to the State's priorities and establish measurement indicators that gauge progress toward m...
	Agency report cards on benchmarks will inform budget decisions. The Legislature can ask the agency to explain how the benchmarks being reported relate to the State's ultimate goals and the agency's primary mission. The benchmark results achieved in th...
	Agency performance reports not only hold agencies accountable for improving performance, they also give them tools to monitor costs and improve efficiency over time. It becomes possible to evaluate the cost for each agency's services, such as the cost...
	The Executive Branch should publish the benchmarks on a public Website. Publication of the various agency goals and benchmarks will link government results to the State's goals and benchmarks. Publication will allow any interested Nevada citizen to ac...
	The impetus for this bill was two-fold: we need a plan if we want to get out of last place; and the performance indicators currently in use are not working. The attachment on A.B. 446 has examples of performance indicators from Texas as well as from N...
	By contrast, the performance indicators for Nevada's Governor's Office of Energy Conservation for 2007 and 2009 shown on pages eight and nine, are completely different. The goal is supposed to be to ensure a reliable and affordable energy supply for N...
	Page ten shows the performance indicators for the Nevada Board of Agriculture Gas Pollution Standards. The first four indicators are: the number of fuel program coordination meetings organized; the number of pertinent State and county air quality meet...
	The last page of this document, the performance indicators for the Labor Commissioner, is one of the better examples in the State. However, the performance goals are still not clearly stated. For FY 2007-2008, was the projected goal to investigate 80 ...
	Senator Coffin:
	I would like to know if the Texas budgets had any line-item details following these performance indicator metrics. Do you have any of those?
	Assemblywoman Buckley:
	I do. We did a study of every state's performance indicators. I would be happy to share that with you. It is also on their Website.
	Senator Coffin:
	We have lost a level of detail over the last 25 years. We used to see a line-item budget, not merely performance indicators. We lost detail and gained poorly done metrics. Would you be willing to merge line-item detail into your bill?
	Assemblywoman Buckley:
	I would be happy to support what you are working on.
	Cochair Horsford:
	Would this be done by the Budget Office?
	Assemblywoman Buckley:
	Yes.
	Cochair Horsford:
	The examples you provided from Texas are exactly the type of information that would help legislators, the public and the agencies themselves to better understand what they are doing. How do we make the process consistent? As we have reviewed budgets t...
	Assemblywoman Buckley:
	First, a template must be created so all agencies have to follow the same model. This allows the Governor and the Legislature, as well as the citizens of Nevada, to compare apples to apples within the same agency from year-to-year and among other agen...
	The fiscal note attached to this bill appears to be a form, and looks similar to the fiscal note attached to your bill. Agencies are currently required to report on performance indicators. The Assembly determined it should cost no more money than it c...
	Cochair Horsford:
	The fiscal note for A.B. 446 is exactly the same number as the fiscal note for a Senate bill which is similar but not identical. Are there any questions from the Committee? Is there anyone who would like to speak either for or against A.B. 446?
	Andrew Clinger (Director, Department of Administration):
	The fiscal note relates to the questions you were asking about creating consistency. We have been required to provide performance measures for a long time. Part of the problem is the agencies need to be trained to put them together. You cannot merely ...
	Cochair Horsford:
	How does the process work currently? The performance indicators are a part of that process.
	Mr. Clinger:
	The performance indicators are a small part of the process currently. There is a 0.5 FTE position in my office to train the agencies. The budget analysts in my office work with the agencies as much as they can to help them identify performance measure...
	Cochair Horsford:
	Performance measures are required by law. Assemblywoman Buckley is not asking for the development of a new requirement. Why can this not be incorporated into the budget process? I do not understand why resources are not available through Personnel or ...
	Mr. Clinger:
	You are correct. This is currently in law. Have we done an adequate job over the last ten years? No. We have not because we have not dedicated the necessary resources to accomplish it. You can pass A.B. 446 and not appropriate any funds for this. I am...
	Cochair Horsford:
	If you made it a priority it could be accomplished.
	Mr. Clinger:
	I have made it a priority. We do not have the resources to do it the way this bill intends.
	Senator Coffin:
	The Texas model is different. I have been looking at the Website of the Texas Legislative Budget Board for the last few minutes. A joint permanent committee of the Legislature oversees the process so there are significant financial resources devoted t...
	Mr. Clinger:
	I agree the reports and examples provided by Assemblywoman Buckley are useful. It is not producing the reports that drives the fiscal note; it is the quality of the data that goes into the reports. If all we were concerned about was creating reports, ...
	Senator Coffin:
	It sounds to me as if it must be a joint endeavor between the Legislature and the Budget Office. I think your fiscal note is high, but I agree some investment is probably necessary.
	Mr. Clinger:
	Fiscal notes are created in a short time frame. They are often "best guesses." It could be refined.
	Senator Coffin:
	How many positions are you down in your office?
	Mr. Clinger:
	All of our budget analyst positions are filled. We have a couple of positions vacant, but they are not analysts.
	Cochair Horsford:
	Is there anyone else here to testify on A.B. 446?
	Carole Vilardo (President, Nevada Taxpayers Association):
	I support A.B. 446. The "Rainy Day Fund" has been critical. The Legislature had a committee in the early 1990s to study the evaluation and performance measures. I would like to see an expansion and an improvement, even if it is not part of the budget ...
	Senator Coffin:
	Ms. Vilardo, do you agree we need more detail?
	Ms. Vilardo:
	I thought it was interesting when the budget format was changed. It was supposed to reduce the number of pages of the budgets, but it has not. I do not know how you solve those problems. The budgets of many of my colleagues are done on performance-bas...
	Cochair Mathews:
	It is important for performance measures to be included in the budget process.
	Cochair Horsford:
	We will close the hearing on A.B. 446.
	We will open the hearing on S.B. 421.
	Mr. Clinger:
	Senate Bill 421 implements the Governor's recommendation to suspend longevity and merit pay increases to State employees over the next two fiscal years. The intent of this bill is to suspend the next four merit payments. There is at least one agency t...
	Cochair Horsford:
	Is there anyone who would like to speak for S.B. 421?
	Jane A. Nichols, Ph.D. (Vice Chancellor for Academic and Student Affairs, Nevada System of Higher Education):
	First, I have a comment on A.B. 446. The University System has asked for more emphasis on performance indicators in our budget for a long time. Regarding S.B. 421, I reluctantly support S.B. 421. It is important to us for our classified employees. Wit...
	Dennis Mallory (Chief of Staff, American Federation of State, County and Municipal Employees, AFL-CIO):
	We are here reluctantly to support S.B. 421. However, I understood that there would be a mechanism to reinstate merit increases and longevity pay if the economy improved during the biennium. I do not see such a mechanism in the bill as it is written. ...
	Rob Potter (Representative, American Federation of State, County and Municipal Employees, AFL-CIO):
	I reluctantly support S.B. 421. As State employees, every time there has been a budget shortfall, we have done our part. We will do our part by taking the suspension of the longevity pay and the merit pay. I come from a two-State worker family. The im...
	ASSEMBLY BILL 395: Provides for workplace relations discussions and agreements for certain state employees. (BDR 23-1020)
	Mr. Dreher:
	About 50 percent of our members are State law enforcement officers. In the economic downturn, we also reluctantly support the suspension of longevity and merit payments in S.B. 421. We also agree that a mechanism should be put into place so that these...
	Cochair Horsford:
	Is there anyone else who would like to testify either for or against S.B. 421? Seeing no one else, we will close the hearing on S.B. 421.
	We will now open the hearing on A.B. 528.
	Michael E. Fischer (Director, Department of Cultural Affairs):
	This is basically a housekeeping measure to bring the Department of Cultural Affairs into line with the budget as it is being proposed. The public hours of the Nevada State Library and Archives are being reduced to four hours a day, five days a week.
	Cochair Horsford:
	Are there any questions? Is there anyone else who would like to speak on A.B. 528?
	SENATOR MATHEWS MOVED TO DO PASS A.B. 528.
	SENATOR HARDY SECONDED THE MOTION.
	Senator Coffin:
	I oppose this in lieu of knowing what it will accomplish with our budgets. I believe the library and archives should be opened these minimal hours. Weekdays means five days a week, not seven days a week.
	Cochair Horsford:
	It is my understanding A.B. 528 would provide flexibility so that if additional funds are appropriated they could add additional hours or days. Currently, they are required to be open a number of days, but the budget does not appropriate enough funds ...
	Mr. Fischer:
	The library is now open five days a week. I would like to see it open seven days a week. The statutory change addresses what we may have to do, and it allows us to go forward with what may be the budget as adopted.
	Senator Coffin:
	The summary of A.B. 528 indicates a temporary suspension. But neither the digest of the Legal Counsel nor the statute indicates it is temporary. There is a conflict. The record should state the Legislature intends this to be a temporary change.
	Cochair Horsford:
	The bill expires on June 30, 2011.
	Senator Coffin:
	Does the proposal you have submitted to add back funding indicate a return to normal operating hours?
	Mr. Fischer:
	Yes, it does.
	THE MOTION CARRIED. (SENATOR RAGGIO WAS ABSENT FOR THE VOTE.)
	*****
	Cochair Horsford:
	We will now open the hearing on A.B. 536.
	Dianne Cornwall (Director, Department of Business and Industry):
	We support A.B. 536 as it is written.
	Cochair Horsford:
	Based on the action of the Joint Subcommittee on General Government and Accountability, I do not think we agree with this bill anymore. The Governor has proposed the transfer of $155,865 from the Amateur Boxing Program reserve to the State General Fun...
	Mr. Ghiggeri:
	This bill was scheduled to facilitate closing the budgets if the Senate and Assembly take different closing actions.
	Cochair Horsford:
	Is there anyone who would like to speak on A.B. 536? Seeing none, we will close the hearing on A.B. 536.
	Cochair Mathews:
	We will now hear the closing report from the Joint Subcommittee on Health and Human Services, Department of Health and Human Services, Health Division.
	Laura Freed (Program Analyst, Fiscal Analysis Division, Legislative Counsel Bureau):
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